
PURVIS GRAY

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Williston, Florida (the City) for
the year ended September 30,2O2O. Professional standards require that we provide you with information
about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standords
and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our
audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated February 9,2O2L. Professional
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Sisnificant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2020.
We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

t Estimation of the Allowonce for Doubtful Accounts-Management's estimate for the allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on historical collection rates and an analysis of the collectability of
individual receivables.

Useful Lives of Assefs-Management's estimate of the useful lives of assets is based upon known
historical facts and industry standards for similar assets.

t Pension Actuariol Methods and Assumptions-Management's estimates are based upon risk and
market factors affecting governmental entities of similar sizes and employee census information.
Management uses the assistance of an actuary hired by the City to project estimated contributions.
This information includes the net pension liability (asset), deferred inflows, and outflows of resources.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Williston
Williston, Florida

FRS Pension Actuarial Methods and Assumptions-As a participating employer in the Florida

Retirement System (FRS), the City has recorded its share of the FRS net pension liability and related

deferred outflows/inflows on its statement of net position. These numbers are estimates based on

assumptions embedded in the employer allocations. lf these assumptions were changed, the
reported amounts could be significantly affected. ln addition, because the FRS operates on a fiscal

year ended June 30, there is a difference between the measurement date of these numbers (June 30,

2020) and the reporting date (September 30, 2020).

t Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Actuariol Methods and Assumptlons-The unfunded accrued

actuarial liability and deferred inflows/outflows for OPEB is determined based on employee census

data and assumptions based on industry trends. Management uses the assistance of an actuary hired

by the City to project estimated contributions. There are significant underlying assumptions in the
actuarial report which, if changed, would affect the reported amounts.

t Compensated Absences-Management utilizes assumptions to best estimate the value of the balance

for employee vacation and sick time available at year-end.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial

statement users. The most sensitive disclosure affecting the financial statements was the disclosure in

Note 12 regarding COVID-79 and its potential impoct to the City.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no material corrected or uncorrected misstatements noted.

Disagree m e nts with M a noge m e nt
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or

auditing mattet whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial

statementsortheauditor'sreport. Wearepleasedtoreportthatnosuchdisagreementsaroseduringthe
course of our audit.

M a nogeme nt Re prese ntotio ns

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management

representation letter dated June LI,2O2L.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Management Consultations with Other lndependent Accountants
ln some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. lf a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or lssues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship, and our responses were not a

condition to our retention.

The following are audit matters that we would like to bring to the attention of the Mayor, City Council,
and management of the City:

Upcoming New Accounting Standards
r The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary

Activities, with an effective date for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 (fiscalyear
ending September 30,2O2t). The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the
identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of
all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on: (1) whether a government
is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity, and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary
relationship exists.

r GASB has issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leoses, with an effective date for reporting periods
beginning after June 15,2OZI (fiscal year ending September 30, 20221. The objective of this Statement
is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of
governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for
leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources, or
outflowsof resources,basedonthepaymentprovisionsofthecontract. ltestablishesasinglemodel
for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right-to-use
an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a

deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about
governments' leasing activities.

Other Audito/s Comments

Fund Balance Reserve Policy
ln the past several years, we have noted a continued decline in most funds of the City wherein
expenditures were greater than revenues causing a decline in reserves of fund balances. Of particular
concern is the decline in the General Fund and Airport Fund. The decline in reserves is approaching a level
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Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Williston
Williston, Florida

that is less than what best practices in governmental management guidelines recommends. Currently,

the General Fund unassigned fund balance is approximately L5.7% of expenditures (including interfund
advance) and best practices recommends a reserve rate of 2O%-25o/o of expenditures. Additionally, the
Airport Fund is showing a negative 521,953 of unassigned fund balance indicating that there are zero

reserves in the fund, which may result in an interfund borrowing from other funds to maintain operations.

We recommend that management of the City and the City Council develop a fund balance/net position

policy that would set limitations and budgetary guidelines to target a desired fund balance/net position

reserve. Having an established reserve level in fund balances will assist the City in future operational
planning and help to restore balances to a level that would assist the City in case of unexpected financial

emergencies.

Building Department
As of December 30, 2020, Florida Statute 553.80(7Xb) requires governments to provide a building permit

and inspection utilization report posted to the City's website. As of the reporting date, no such report has

been made available on the website. We recommend the City disclose a building permit and inspection

utilization report to their website to comply with Florida Statutes.

During our review of the Building Department revenues and expenditures, we observed the department
has had several years of losses, wherein the fees assessed for building permits were not enough to cover

the costs of the department. Upon further review of permitting fees, a system calculation issue was noted

for rates of certain permits. Of the sample reviewed, there were four exceptions noted. We recommend

management review their permitting software to ensure fees are being assessed appropriately and, if
necessary, create mitigating controls to test that building permits rates are being charged based on

existing ordinances. Additionally, we recommend management review costs associated within the
department to ensure fees are set to cover the costs of operating the department.

Airport Billing Routine
During our 2O2O audit, we noted the Airport revenues received from land, t-hangar, and corporate t-
hangar space rentals were not being reconciled month to month. We recommend reconciling revenues

received from airport space rentals monthly to ensure timely review of any collections outstanding.

lnformation Technology (lT General Controls!
Our review of the lT General Controls is ongoing as the City recently hired an internal employee to manage

the City's lT structure and governance. As the process is ongoing, we will assist management with
recommendations as necessary.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management Discussion and Analysis, Retirement Plans'

Schedules, and Other Postemployment Benefits Schedules, which are required supplementary
information (RSl) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries

of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and

do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSl.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, City Council, and
management of the City and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

n*^*
June 11",202L

Ocala, Florida

&'"*/
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PURvIS GRAY

I N DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council

City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Williston (the City)

as of and for the year ended September 30,2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and

the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financialstatements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluatingthe overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

CERTIFIED PUBL1C ACCOUNTANTS
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Opinions
ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, the Airport
Development and Community Redevelopment Special Revenue Funds and, where applicable, cash flows,
thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter - COVID-L9

As more fully described in Note 12 to the financial statements, the City may be operationally and
financially impacted by the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

Other Matters

Requi re d Su p ple me nta ry I nformati on
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, Pension Plans'Schedules, and Other Postemployment Benefits Schedules, as listed
in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence
to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporti ng Req u i re d by Govern me nt Au d iti ng Sta nda rd s
ln accordance with Government Auditing Stondards, we have also issued our report dated June tI,2O2I,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. Thepurposeofthatreportissolelytodescribethescopeofourtestingof internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

fr ^*
June 1'1,,2021
Ocala, Florida
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the City of Williston,

Florida's (the City) basic financial statements. lt also provides assistance to the readers by focusing on

significant financial issues, providing an overview of the City's financial activities, and identifying the City's

ability to meet future challenges; it assists in identifying significant deviations from the financial plan and

addresses any individual fund issues or concerns. Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current
year's activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the
City's financial statements (beginning on page 18). Please note the City provides prior year comparative
financial information as required by GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34.

As management of the City, we offer readers of the City's annual financial statements this narrative

overview and analysis of financial activities of the City for fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. All

amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHTIGHTS

The City's net position exceeded its liabilities at the close of the current fiscalyear by 525,811,307

r The City's total net position decreased by S1,408,211 for the current fiscal year. Governmental
activities assets decreased by 5L,040,24I, and business-type activities decreased by S367,970 for the
fiscal year.

r The City's governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of 5873,536. The non-

spendable portion of the fund balance totaled 542,052 and the restricted portion totaled 5436,339.
Approximately 45.2% of the ending fund balance, 5395,245, is available for spending at the City's

discretion (unassigned fund balance).

r The City maintains two single employer defined benefit plans that separately cover full-time police

officers and all other general employees. The net change in the fiduciary fund's assets was an increase

of 565,105 from the prior year.

r The City's total long-term debt decreased by 5102,522 or 6.6% during the current fiscal year. The

decrease was the result of principal payments as well as a net reduction in the City's total
compensated absences and other special benefits.

r The City's total net position of 525,811,307 is divided into the following classifications:

Net lnvestment in Capital Assets in the amountof 521,743,I28. This includes land, buildings,

improvements, and equipment less accumulated depreciation and any outstanding debt that is

related to the purchase or construction of those assets.

Restricted assets of 5436,339 for specific use in law enforcement, local option gas tax, building

department, and community redevelopment expenditures.

Unrestricted assets in the amount of 53,631,840 are available for the City to meet the ongoing

activities and obligations to citizens and creditors.

o

o
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Overview of the Financial Statements

The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic
financial statements are comprised of: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial
statements; and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. For the fiscal year ended
September 30,2020, the City has prepared the financial statements based on the guidelines provided in
the GASB Statement No. 34 reporting model illustrated below:

Basic Financial Statements
A. Government-Wide

B. Fund Financials

$
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

+

Required

Supplementary
lnformation

+

Government-Wide Financial Stotements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City's finances as a whole. This broad overview is similar to the financial reporting of private-sector
businesses. The government-wide financial statements have separate columns for governmental
activities and business-type activities. Governmental activities are primarily supported by taxes, charges
for services and grants, while business-type activities are self-supporting through user fees and charges.

The statement of net position presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating.

r The stdtement of activities presents information on how the City's net position changed during the
fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cosh flows. Thus, revenues and expenditures are
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. (e.g.,

uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions within the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmentalactivitiesl from other functions that
are intended to recover all or in part a portion of these costs through user fees and charges (business-type
octivitiesl. Governmental activities include, among other things, general government (city council,
finance, and administration), public safety (police and fire control), public works (streets and sidewalks),
culture, and recreation. Business activities include electric, gas, water, sewer, and sanitation utilities. The
government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18 and 19 of this report.

Management's
Discussion and

Analysis
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund

accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds in the City can

be divided into governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

This fund is used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmentalfund financial statements focus on neor-term inflows (revenues) and outflows (expenditures

of spendable resources), as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. The government-wide financial statements include both neor-term and long-term inflows (revenues)

and outflows (expenditures/, as well as on bolonces of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. lnformation in the governmental funds may be useful in evaluating a government's nedr-term
financing requirements.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements. lt is

usefulto compare the information presented in the governmentalfundswith similar information presented

for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the City's neor-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
gove rnme ntal octivities.

The City maintains three (3) individual governmentol funds. lnformation is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and irr the govenlnerrl.al staLelnenL of revertues, expettditures, and

changes in fund balance for the general fund, airport development special revenue fund, and community
redevelopment special revenue fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. The basic
governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20 through 25 of this report.

Proprietary Funds

The City maintains one type of proprietary fund, which is the enterprise fund, used to report the same

functions presented as business-type octivities in the government-wide financial statements. The City

uses enterprise funds to separately account for its utility activities. Business-type activities charge a fee

for the specific goods or services provided to customers. The basic proprietary fund financial statements
can be found on pages 27 through 29 ofthis report.

Fiduciary Funds

This fund accounts for resources held in a trustee capacity or as an agent for parties outside of the
government. Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements because their
resources or assets are not available to support the City's activities. The City has two fiduciary fund-type
pension trusts for its pension funds. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used in
proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 and 31 of this
report.
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CIW OF WILIISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALVSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Notes to the Financiol Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is important in order to gain a
full understanding of the data in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes are
located immediately following the basic financial statements on pages 32 through 65 of this report.

Other lnformation

ln addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension and other postemployment benefits to its general employees and police officers. Required
supplementary information can be found on pages 55 through 72 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, the statement of net position on the following page may serve over time as a useful
indicator of the City's financial position. The City's net position exceeded liabilities by 525,811,307 at the
close of the fiscal year ended September 30,2020, resulting in a decrease in net position of 51,,408,211,,
or approximately 5.2% less than the prior year total of 527,219,5I8.

Byfar, the largest portion of the City's net position is reflected in its investment in capitalassets such as

land, buildings, improvements, and equipment, less any debt used to acquire those assets that are still
outstanding, which totals 521,743,128,or84.2% of the overall net position mentioned above. The City
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although, the City's investment in capital assets is reported net of related outstanding
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The restricted net position are resources subject to external restrictions on how they may be used and
represent 5436,339, or L.70/o of total net position. Restricted assets increased by 589,759, or 20.6To,trom
the prior year. The remaining balance of 53,531,840 is unrestricted and may be used to meet the City's
ongoing obligations to its citizens, customers, and creditors.

The statement of net position on the following page illustrates the increases or decreases in net position
from the prior fiscal year both for governmental-type and business-type activities.
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CIW OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Statement of Net Position
September 30,2O2O

Governmental Business-Type

Activities

2019 2020

Activities

2019 2024

Total

2019 2020

Current and other assets

Prepaids and other
Capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation
Total assets

Deferred Outflows - OPEB

Deferred Outflows - Pension

Total Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Long-term liabilities

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred lnflows - OPEB

Deferred lnflows - Pension

Total Deferred lnflows
of Resources

Net assets:

Net lnvestment in

Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted
Total net assets

5 1,246,924 5

520,344

2,616,341 s
476,5t3

4,235,443 s
4L4,950

4,117,207 s
4L6,452

s,482,367 5 6,733.s42

935,294 892,965

15,667,595 L3,42t,565 8,501,012 8,259,696 24,164,607 23.,681,261

t7,434,863 16,514,419 13,151,t1t)5 12,79?,349 30,586,268 29,307,768

13,237

1,209,662

50,118

1,282,563

8,793
359,624

34,239

299,720

22,430

1,s69.286

84,357

t.582,28?

\222,499 1,332,681 368,417 333.959 1.591..316 1,556,6/t0

L,244,856

487,478

1,750,39L

3L6,724

t,397,473
890,540

1,384,894

902,963

2,642,329

1,378,018

3,135,285

1.,2t9,O87

L,732,3U 2,066,515 2,288,013 2.287,857 4,O20.it47 4,354,372

14,805

562,448

63,236

409,415

9,835

350,631

42,921

297,L57

24,UO t06,t57
913,079 742,572

577,253 472,65t 360,466 336,078 937,719 804,729

L5,394,649

346,880

646,646

74,684,t42

436,339

187,053

7,255,473 7,058,586

3.444.787

22,650,L22

346,880

4.222.5L6

2L,743,128

436,339

3.631.8403,6t5,870

9 16,348,17s $ rs,302,934 5 10,871,343 $ 10,503,373 S 27,2t9,5ts S 25,811,30?

Normal lmpacts

There are six basic transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Position

summary presentation.

1. Net results of activities will impact (increase/decrease current assets and unrestricted net position)

2. Borrowing of capital will increase current assets and long-term debt.

3. Spending borrowed proceeds on new capital will reduce current assets and increase capital assets.

There is a second impact, an increase in invested capital assets, and an increase in related net debt
will not change the invested in capital assets, net of debt.

4. Spending of non-borrowed current assets on new capital will reduce current assets, increase capital
assets, reduce unrestricted net position, and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

5. Principal payment of debt will reduce current assets and reduce long-term debt, reduce unrestricted
net position, and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.

6. Reduction of capital assets through depreciation will reduce capital assets and invested in capital
assets, net of debt.
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ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FLORTDA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AN D ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended September 30,2O2O

Governmental
Activities

20t9 2020

Business-Type
Activities

2019 2020

Total
2019 2020

Revenues

Program aevenues:

Charges for services

Capital grants & contributions

General rev€nues:

Property taxes

Public service tax

Other taxes

Other
Total revenues

Expenses

General government
Law enforcement
Fire control
Streets and sidewalks

Parks and recreation

Community redevelopment
Animal control
Airport operations & development
lnterest on long-term debt
Utility
Non Departmental

Total expenses

lncrease / (Decrease| in net
position before transfers:

Transfers

Change in net position

s 1,537,398 $ 1,354,811 $ 5,619,449

882,946 138,151 9,886
s 5,557,317

196,956
$ 7,Ls6,847

892,832
5 6,9t2,L28

335,107

750,847

373,899

416,3O4

734,549

851,451

358,562

455,831

750,847

373,899

4L6,304

736,749

851,451

358,562

455,831

785,090782,342 2,240 2,748
4,695,903 ?,94t,L8 5,631,575 5,757,A21 to,t27,478 9,598,169

651,225

1,s94189
676,827

427,334

97347
152,905

56,359

2,323,906

2,196

666,100

1,599,794

8O2,446

373,484

65,165

127,O94

67,437

2,172,682

1,650

651,225

1,594189

676,821

427,334

97,307

152,905

56,359

2,323,806

2,L96

s,4og,42t

408s

666,100

1,589,794

8O2,U6

373,484

65,165

127,494

67,43L

2,L72,692

1,650

5,234,99L

6,343

5,408,42! 5,234,99t
4,085 6,343

(5,986,2271 {5,87r.,389} (5,234,99L1 {1r.,394648} (11,106,380}

{r,290,3241 (1,930,241, 223,154 522,O3O (L,O67,L7A) $,4O8,21L1

636,570 890,000 {636,570} (890,000)

t653,754|

L7,OA\929

0,04a,24t1

L6,?48,L75

1413,4!61

t!,784,759

1367,9701

10,871,343

(L,O67,L7Al

28,286,688

{r,4o8,2L11

27,279,518Net position, beglnning of year
Net position, end of year Sr6,34s,17s $rs,aoz,ssc $10,871,343 $10,503,373 Sz7,2L9,sLg 925,811,307

The statement shown above illustrates the increase or decrease in net position for the City resulting from
its operating activities.
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CIW OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Governmental Activities

As shown on the previous page, the City's total net position for governmental activities decreased by

SL,O4O,24L for the current fiscal year. Key elements of these changes are as follows:

Revenues

Overall, the total revenue for governmental activities decreased by 5754,755 compared to the prior fiscal
year. The activity was as follows:

Charges for services decreased by 5182,587, or IL.9%o, from the prior fiscal year-end. The decrease was

the result of lower fuel sales at the Airport during the current year. The decrease was offset by increasing

in building permit revenue as well as other miscellaneous revenue at the Airport.

Capital grants and contributions decreased by 5744,795 or 84. Yo,from the prior fiscal year. The decrease

was the result of less grant-related projects at the Airport during the current year in comparison to the
prior fiscal year.

The general revenues increased bV 5L72,627 compared to the previous year primarily because of an

increase in property taxes, franchise fees, code enforcement fees, telecommunication tax and other local

infrastructure taxes. These increases were offset by a reduction in public service taxes.

The following chart shows the percentage each revenue source represents within the City as a whole. The

percentages may not equate to 100 percent due to rounding.

Governmental Revenues By Source - 2020

19-90'6
11,.6oy'a

9.1

34.4o/o

9

I Charges for services

r Capital grants &
contributions

I Property taxes

r Public service tax

r Other taxes

I Other

21.6o./a
3.So/a



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT,S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Expenses

The City's governmental expenses decreased to 55,871,389, a 5114,838 or 1.9% decrease from the
previous fiscal year's total of 55,986,227. The decrease is primarily the result of lower fuel purchases
required at the Airport as well as open staff positions during the year. These decreases for offset by an
increase in payroll-related costs in the fire department, as well as a small increase in depreciation
expenses.

The following illustration shows the percentage each functional area represents within the City as a whole
The percentages may not equate to 100 percent due to rounding.

Governmental Activities Expenses By Function - 2O2O

o.1% 11.3o/o

A.OYo 27.7%

13-74/o

I Non Departmental

I General govemment

t Law Enforcement

r Fire Control

r Streets & Sidewalks

nAnimal Control

m Parks & Recreation

& Community Development

,..Airport Oper & Development

H lnterest on long-term debt

37

2.2%

The bar chart on the next page compares governmental activity expenses against program revenues that
each department generates, without any associated general revenues such as property, franchise, public
service and telecommunication taxes, as well as interest and other miscellaneous income.

10



CIW OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT,S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Govemmental Actlvldes Expenses & Program Revenuei- 2O2O

lRevenues IExpenses

lnterest on long-term debt

Non Depa*mental

Airport Oper & Development

Community Development

Parl<s & Recreation

Animal Control

Streets & Sidewalks

Fire Control

Law Enforcement

General government

5OO,0OO 1,000,000 1,500,000 2,ooo,00o 4500,0m

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities decreased the City's net position by 5367,970 from the previous fiscal year-end.

The decrease in the City's net position was primarily the result of an increase in the City's transfer to the
General fund as well as an increase in the depreciation during the current fiscal year. Other contributing
factors are discussed below.

Revenues

Overall, total revenue for business-type activities increased by 5125,446 compared to the prior fiscal year.

The increase was primarily the result of revenue from grant projects as well as increases in water and

sewer utility billings. These increases were offset by decreases in electricity utility billings.

The activity for the fiscalyear was as follows: charges for services decreased by 562,!32, capital grants

and contributions increased by 5187,070, and other revenues and interest increased by 5508 from the
prior fiscal year. The chart below illustrates the breakdown as a percentage of total revenues by each

source for the City's business-type activities.

Eusiness-type Activities Revenues By Source - 2O2O

3.4%
A.Oolo

I Charges for services

r Capital Grants and Contributions

* Other Revenue

TL



ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FLORTDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Business-type activity expenses decreased by S173,430 from the prior fiscal year-end. The decrease was
primarily the result of lower electricity and gas purchases related to utility billing services as well as a
decrease in materials & supplies. These decreases were offset by an increase in professional services and
depreciation expenses for the current fiscal year.

The bar chart shown below compares expenses and program revenues for the current fiscal year and the
previous one, to illustrate how business-type activities support themselves without the aid of general
revenues such as interest earnings and before any transfers are made to governmental funds.

Business-type Activities Expenses And Program Revenues -
20.20

5,800,000

t700,000
5,600,000

5,500,000

5,400,00o

5,300,000

5,200,000

5,100,000

5,000,000

4,900,000

2020 2079

Fund Financial Analysis

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds

The primary function of the City's governmental funds is to report on neor-term revenues (inflows),
expenditures (outflows) and balance of spendable resources. This information is useful in assessing the
government's financial requirements in the near future. ln particular, fund balance is a good indicator of
the City's net resources that are available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. At the end of the
current fiscal year the City's combined ending governmental fund balance was 5873,636. The fund
balance in the general fund was 5503,975. The fund balance in the two special revenue funds was a

combined ending balance of 5369,661. The City ended the current fiscal year with an overall increase in
its combined fund balance of 535,552 as compared to the prior year end balance of 5838,084.

The City has three major governmental funds as shown below. The following pages illustrate the net
change in fund balance for each of the three funds for the fiscal year.

Major Funds

r General Fund

r Special Revenue Fund - Airport Development
r Special Revenue Fund - Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA)

I Expenses

I Revenues

a

-
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FI.ORIDA

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

The general fund is the main operating fund for the City and is shown below. The fund balance after
transfers increased by 57,085 for the fiscal year, as compared to a decrease of 5290,537 in the previous

fiscal year, a net increase in 2020 of 5297,722.

General Fund

2019 2020 lncr. | (Decr.)

Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits

lntergovern mental

Fines and forfeitures
lnterest Earnings

Other
Total revenues 2,311,515 2,389,23L 77,7t6

s 1,528,906

79,240

661,836

9,677

1,081

30,775

s 1,547,438 s
95,223

605,075

26,955

712
L3,827

118,532

15,983
(56,760)

77,278
(36s)

(16,949)

Expenditures
Cu rrent:

General Government
Law enforcement
Communications
Streets and sidewalks
Fire Control
Parks and recreation

Library
Planning and zoning

Legislative and legal

Animal Control
Non-departmental

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Pri nci pa I

I nterest
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other financing

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning ofyear

Fund balances, end ofyear

(t,t47,6541 13,L74,4781 125,8241

(836,139) 50,892

437,578

1,180,888

222,72r

349,037

569,153

33,t46
6,794

r03,874

55,247
53,294

3,907

108,641

297,978
L,L28,224

240,373
292,391

670,341
2,763

6,344
L63,495

45,621

58,342
5,883

239,403

(139,600)

(52,6641

L7,592
(56,646)

10L,188
(30,383)

(4so)

59,627
(9,620)

5,048

t,976
130,762

27,L84

2,196

2L,730

1,650

546
(s46)

636,570
(91,068)

890,000
(97.6581

253,430
(5.500)

545,502

(29O,637l,

787,527

792,332

7,085

496,890

246,83O

s 496,890 s 503,975

13

297,722



CIW OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

The special revenue fund - airport development is another operating fund of the City. The fund balance
increased by $2,340 for the current fiscal year, as compared to a decrease of 599,254 in the previous year,
a net increase in 2020 of 5101,594 as illustrated below:

Special Revenue Fund

Airport Development

2019 2O2O lncr. | (Decr.|

Revenues

lntergovernmental

lnterest Earnings

Rental lncome

Timber and hay sales

FuelSales

Other

Total revenues 2,248,Ot7 L,393,2O6 (854,831)

5 796,946 S

740

323,332

r,405
L,L72,722

12,gg2

L3I,923 5

461.

338,120

L,629

906,985

74,O89

(665,023)

(27sl

14,788

223
(2O5,7371

I,T97

Expenditures

Current:

Airport Development

CapitalOutlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

12,347,29tI (1,390,866) 956,425

(99,2541 2,34O tor,594

L,449,682

897,609

L,259,168

131,698

(190,514)

(765,gLLl,

199,2s41

L15,825

2,340

L6,571,

LOr,594

S 1G,571 S 18,911

14



CIW OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

The community redevelopment fund is another special revenue fund the City includes in its statements
as illustrated below. The fund balance after transfers associated with this fund increased by 526,L27 for
the current fiscal year-end, as compared to a decrease of S143,056 in the prior year, a net increase in
2020 of 5159,183. The fund was established to account for the Community Redevelopment Agency's
(CRA) activities. The CRA's sole purpose is eliminating and preventing the development of slum and

blighted areas within the community in order to serve the interest of the citizens.

Special Revenue Fund

Community Redevelopment

2019 2O2O lncr. / (Decr.)

Revenues

Taxes

lnterest Earnings

Miscellaneous Revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures

Community Redevelopment

Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Total Other financing

s 131,137 5 t3s,226 s q,osg

s,000 2,750 (2,2s01

136,350 138,118 1,768

1370,4741 (209,659) 160,815

(234,L241 (7t,s4rl r62,s83

91,068 97,668 6,600

91,068 97,668 6,600

273 142 (7rl

LL2,016

258,458

72,t72
\37,487

(39,844)

(r2o,97rl

169,183

$ 324,623 s 350,750

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for all illustrations shown on the
previous pages 13 through L5 are provided on page 22 ofthis report.

Proprietary Funds

The City's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-

wide financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the business-type activities
totaled 53,444,787,with the remaining 57,058,586 being invested in capital assets net of any related debt
at the end of the 2020 fiscal year.

The City's total net position for business-type activities decreased by 5367,970 from the prior fiscal year-

end. Key elements of the decrease have been addressed in the discussion of the City's business-type

activities found on pages 1L and L2 of this report.

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

(143,0s6)

467,679

26,L27

324,623
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

General Fund Budgetary Highlights with Variances

Overall, the general fund ended the current fiscalyear with a negative variance between its final operating
revenues budgeted and actual operating revenues in the amount of 57,884. This was mainly due to an
increase in taxes, which was offset by a decrease in licenses, permits and fees, intergovernmental, interest
earnings along with fines and forfeiture revenues.

The general fund experienced a positive variance between its final operating expenditures budget and
actual operating expenditures in the amount of S158,689. The positive variance was largely the result of
less spending on law enforcement, fire control, street & sidewalks and parks & recreation than was
anticipated in the budget.

Capitol Asset and Debt Administration

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30,2O2O, amounts to 523,L74,861 (net of accumulated depreciation) as compared to the prior
year-end total of 524,t68,607 as shown below. The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
utility distribution systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, streets, roads, and construction in
progress. The total decrease in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 5993,746 or 4.I%.
Governmental activities decreased by 5752,430 and the business-type activities decreased by $241,316
as illustrated below. The decrease in capital assets was primarily the result of depreciation record in the
current fiscal year,

Capital Assets - Net of depreciation
(in thousands)

Governmental
Activities

2079 2020

Business-Type

Activities
2019 2020

Total

20L9 2020
Land

Construction ln Progress

Buildings and lmprovements
Plant and Distribution Systems

Machinery and Equipment
Total Assets, Net

5r,4r3,zzs
55,354

12,7L4,OL7

S1,s09,23s
t50,274

Lt,849,794

S133,986

7,293,470

s133,966
188,055

5L,547,LgL
55,354

12,7t4,O17
7,293,470
2,554,575

51,643,20L
338,329

L7,889,794
5,816,690

2,486,847

6,816,690
L,L20,945\444,999 L,365,862 1,O73,576

s15.567.595 S14,91s,16s s8,s01,012 s8,2s9,696 524,158,607 523,L74,86L

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 4 starting on page 42 of this report.

'J.6



CIW OF WIILISTON, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANATYSIS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total long-term debt balance of S1,452,31L. Of that
amount, S198,060 is comprised of general obligation debt and backed by the credit of the government.
The remaining$t,254,251 represents notes secured solely by specific revenue sources. Governmental
activities account for S187,131- while business-type activities account for S1,265,180 of the overall debt
as shown below.

Long-Term Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental
Activities

2019 2020

Fire Vehicle
Compensated Absences & Other
Total Governmental Activities

City Hall
Compensated Absences & Other
Tota I Business-Type Activities

$234168 s187,131

574,87r
159,297

s53,141
133,990

Business-Type
Activities

2019
r,245,539

75,126

2020
t,zot,!!o

64,O7O

s1,320,665 s1,265,180

Total Outstanding Debt s1,554833 st,452,3LL

Additional information on the City's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 on pages 44 through 45 of this
report.

Request for lnformation

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be

addressed to the City Manager or Finance Director, at 50 N.W. Main Street, Williston, Florida 32696.

L7
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CIW OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

lnvestments - Certificates of Deposit

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted

Receivables (Net of Allowance for
Uncollectable Accounts)

Due from Other Governments
lnterfund Balances

lnventories
Prepaid ltems
Net Pension Asset

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Capital Assets Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources

Deferred Outflow - OPEB Related

Deferred Outflow - Pension Related

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Due to Pensions

Customer Deposits

Power Costs Recovered in Advance
Liabilities:

Due Within One Year

Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources

Deferred lnflow - OPEB Related

Deferred lnflow - Pension Related

Total Deferred lnflow of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred lnflow of Resources

Net Position
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets

Restricted for:
Law Enforcement
Community Redevelopment
Building Department
Local Option Gas Tax

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

s 948,598 5 2,28s,47s
86,935

268,938

910,078
9t,648

198,075

276,052
16,525

399,927

322,O2r
7,937,675

5 3,234,073
86,935

268,938

963,742

379,360

306,894

27,735
865,230

1,981,530

2r,193,337

s3,664
287,7r2

(198,07s)

30,842
7r,270

465,303

1,659,509

13,255,556

t6,5t4,4L9 L2,793,349 29,307,768

50,118

L,282,563
34,239

299,720
84,357

L,582,283
r,332,68L 333,959 1,666,640

L7,847,IO0 L3,I27,308 30,974,408

229,752
30,s53

55,809

7,750,391

505,898

268,938

64,339

62,788
t,384,894

736,650

30,563

268,938

64,339

rrg,5g7
3,r35,285

2,066,sts 2,287,857 4,354,372

63,236
409,415

42,92L
293,157

to6,t57
702,572

472,65r 336,078 808,729
2,539,t66 2,623,935 5,163,101

L4,684,542

1,s98
350,750

2,585

81,406
187,053

7,058,586 2t,743,t28

1,s98

350,750

2,585

8L,406
3,63',J-,8403,444,787

s 15,307,934 s 10,503,373 $ 25,811,307

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Program Revenues

Charges for
Operating

Grants and
ContributionsServices

108,078 s

L,246,733

1 .354_81 1

5.557.317

Eq1? 1)9, (

General Revenues

Property Taxes

Fines and Forfeitures
Franchise Taxes

Public Service Tax

Loca I Government I nfrastructure Tax

State Revenue Sharing

Telecommunication Tax

lnterest Earnings

Miscellaneous

Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets

Total General Revenues

Transfers
Transfers

Total Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

Capital
Grants and

contributions
Governmental

Activities

14.37A.4271

.4.378-427\

8s1,4s1
26,gss
92,320

358,552

280,427

66s,667
83,084

1,315

87,432
973

2.448,L86

890,000
890,000

(t,o4o,241].

16,348,L75

Net (Expense) Revenue And
Change in Net Position

Business-

Type
Activities TotalFunctions/Programs

Governmental Activities
6eneral Government
Law Enforcement
Fire Control

Streets and Sidewalks

Animal Control
Parks and Recreation

Community Redevelopment

Non-Departmental
Airport Operations
lnterest on Long-Term Debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Utility Services

Total Government

s

(

Expenses

565,100 s
L,549,794

802,046
373,484

67,O3L

6s,16s
127,O94

6,343

2,L72,682
1,550

s 6,228 s

L31,923

138.151

195,955

l?q I n7

(ss1,794) s
17,s89,794l.

(802,046)

1373,484)
(57,031)

(6s,16s)
(L27,0941

(5,343)

(794,0261
(1.650)

(ss1,794)

(L,s89,7s41

(802,045)

(373,4841

(67,c8rl
(6s,16s)

(t27,0941
(6,343)

17s4,026l
(1.5s0)

s

5.871,389

5.234.99L

'tl1()6 lRo ( q

(437A.4271

5t9.282

(3.859.145!

851,451

26,955
92,320

358,562

280,427

665,667

83,084
2,480

47,432
2,556

2,450,934

5L9,242

5L9.242

1,165

1,583

2,748

(890,000)

(890,000)

1367,s7ol

LO.47L.343

(r,4o8,zrl\l

27.219.518

s 1s.307.934 s

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

BATANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAT FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

General

Special

Revenue
Airport

Development

Special
Revenue

Community
Redevelopment

Total
Governmental

Funds
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivables (Net of Allowance
For Uncol lectible Accounts)

Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds

Inventories
Prepaid ltems

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued

Expenses

Due to Pension Fund
Due to Other Funds
Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Non-Spendable
Restricted:

Law Enforcement
Commu nity Redevelopment
Building Department
Local Option Gas Tax

Unassigned
Total Fund Balances

s 661,571 s 848s286,1795948,s98

1,188

931,69s t8r6r6 35r"649 \469,]9?0

!1,673
185,789

7r,474

4I,99I
tor,923

30,842
r0,022

95,241

7L,474

s3,664
287,7t2
r37,944
30,842
tt,2t0

66,470

1,899r32,672
30,563

66,470
198,075

229,752
30,563

t37,944
198,07s

427,720 L66,715 1,899 596,334

1,188

1,598

2,s8s
81,406

417,798

40,864

350,750

42,O52

1,598

350,750
2,595

8r,406
395,245(21,es3)

503,975 18,911 350,750 873,536

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances s 931,695 s 785,626 s 352,549 s 7,469,970

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BATANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

Total Fund Balance for Governmental Funds

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are
Different Because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is 527 ,184,970 and the accumulated
depreciation is $12,269,805.

Net pension assets and liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
the pensions are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.

Net Pension Liability - FRS

Net Pension Liability - HIS

Net Pension Asset - Police

Net Pension Asset - General

Deferred lnflow - OPEB

Deferred lnflow - FRS

Deferred lnflow - HIS

Deferred lnflow - Police

Deferred lnflow - General

Deferred Outflow - OPEB

Deferred Outflow - FRS

Deferred Outflow - HIS

Deferred Outflow - Police

Deferred Outflow - General

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, accordingly, are not
reported as fund liabilities. lnterest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental

funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities, both current and

long-term are reported in the statement of net position. Long-term liabilities at year-end

consist of:

Capital Lease Payable

Compensated Absences

OPEB Obligation

Net Position of Governmental Activities

s 873,636

t4,9t5,165

(r,2r4,t36)
(137,797)

91,806

373,497

(63,236)

(8,118)

(127,st6l
(273,787)

50,118

664,643
91,168

246,84t
279,9L1

(s3,r47)
(133,990)

1267,r42)

S rs,goz,ggq

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BATANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

General

Special
Revenue
Airport

Development

Special
Revenue

Community
Redevelopment

Total
Governmental

Funds
Revenues

Taxes:

Property Tax
Sales and Fuel Tax
Franchise Tax

Licenses, Permits, and Fees
lntergovern mental
Fines and Forfeitures
lnterest Earnings
Rental lncome
Timber and Hay Sales

Fuel Sales

Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

Program Expenditures

Current:
General Government
Law Enforcement
Communications
Roads and Streets
Fire Control
Parks and Recreation
I ibrary
Planning and Zoning
Legislative and Legal

Animal Control
Airport Operations
Comm unity Redevelopment
Non-Departmental

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
I nterest

(Total Expenditures)

(Deficiency) Excess of Revenues
(Under) Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Usesl

Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net €hange in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

s 716,225
397,246
s33,957

95,223
605,076

26,955
772

73,827

r3t,923

461
338,120

1,628
906,985

14,089

851,451
397,246
s33,967
95,223

736,999
26,955

1,315
338,120

7,628
905,985

30,656

s S 135,226 S

2,750

742

2,389,231 t,393,206 138,118 3.920,555

297,978
t,t28,224

240,3r3
292,391
670,34r

2,753
6,344

1,63,495

45,627
58,342

5,883
239,403

2L,730
1,650

1,259,168

131,698

72,772

t37,487

297,978
t,L29,224

240,3r3
292,397
670,34r

2,763
6,344

t63,495
45,62r
58,342

l,z5g,t6g
72,172

5,883
508,588

21,730
1,650

(3,L74,4781 (1,390,866) (209,6s9) l4,77s,O93l

(785,247) 2,340 (7L,s4t) (854,4481

890,000
(97,568)

97,668 987,658
(97,568)

792,332 97,668

7,095

496,890

2,340

16,57L

26,127

324,623

35,552

838,084

s s03.97s s 18.911 s 3s0.7s0 s 873.636

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BATANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are
Different Because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period:

Capital Additions

Depreciation Expense

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, notes payable) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items:

Repayment of Long-Term Debt
Removal of Special Termination Benefit

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds:

Net Change in Compensated Absences

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, changes in pension and OPEB liabilities are
reported as a pension and OPEB expense. The following changes affected
pension and OPEB related expense:

Pension Expense - FRS

Pension Expense - HIS

Pension Expense - Police

Pension Expense - General

OPEB Expense - General

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notesto financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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395,395
(I,147,8271

21,730

20,593

4,714

.244,66Ll,

(2o,60o)

(16,3441

(21,985)

(66,809)

s (1,040,241)



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BAIANCES. GENERAT FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Revenues
Taxes

Licenses, Permits, and Fees

lntergovernmental
Fines and Forfeitures
lnterest Earnings
Misc. Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Cu rrent:

General Government
Law Enforcement
Communications
Streets and Sidewalks

Fire Control
Parks and Recreation
Library
Planning and Zoning
Legislative and Legal

Animal Control
Non-Depa rtmental

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
I nterest

(Total Expenditures)

(Deficiency) of Revenues (Underl

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses!

Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

S 1,509,54G S

165,580
620,5r4
39,935
12,000
19,500

1,509,546
195,580
620,5r4

39,935
12,000
19,500

$ r,647,4i8
95,223

605,075
26,955

712
13,827

2,367,075 2,397,075 2,389,23r

s 137,892
(100,357)

(15,438)
(12,980)
(11,288)

(s,673)
(7,8441

306,268
r,163,724

247,r03
324,641
577,622
2r,036

6,970
732,2r8
41,000
51,159
18,887

232,600

39,757

293,276
7,163,724

247,IO3
324,64L
722,622
2!,036
6,970

180,149
51,000
51,159
78,887

2s2,600

39,75r

297,978
1",r28,224

240,3I3
292,391
670,341

2,763
6,344

163,495
45,627
58,342

5,883
239,403

14,7O2l
35,500

6,790
32,25O

52,28r
r8,273

626
16,654
5,379

(7,183)

13,004
13,197

2r,730
1,550

t8,ozL
16,066L7 716 L7 7L5

(3,180,6ss) (3,390,634) (3,774,4781 2t6,756

(813,620) (993,ss9) (78s,2471 208,3r2

745,OOO

(36,440)
920,000

t46,440l,

890,000
(97,668)

(30,000)
(5L,228)

708,560 873,550 792,332 (87,2281

Net Change in Fund Balance 127,O84

{772,406'lFund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End ofYear S 391,830 s 376,891 5 503,975 s (45,3221

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAT REVENUE FUND

AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Revenues

I ntergovern menta I Revenue

lnterest Earnings

Rental lncome
Timber and Hay Sales

Fuel Sales

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Airport Operations
Capital Outlay

(Total Expenditures)

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

2,006,813 2,006,813 7,393,206

s 465,678 s
1,600

355,000

2,900
L,!65,275

16,360

465,678 s
1,600

355,000

2,goo
1,165,275

16,360

137,923 s
46t

338,120
L,628

906,985

14,089

(333,755)

(1,139)

(16,880)

(t,272l,
(258,290)

271

(613,607)

L,54L,135
465,678

t,541,t35
465,678

r,259,168
131,698

28r,967
333,990

(2,006,813) (2,006,813) (1,390,865) 6t5,947

2,340 2,340

t6,57t 16,57t

2,340

76,57r

2,340

s ro,szr 5 r6,57L s 18,911 s 2,340

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CIW OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND

CHANGES IN FUND BATANCES

SPECIAT REVENUE FUND

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final

s 135,225 5 135,225 s
200

Revenues

Taxes

lnterest and Other

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures

Current:
Community Redevelopment

CapitalOutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Over (Under}

Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer in
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balances, Beginning ofYear

Fund Balances, End ofYear

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

200

L35,226 s
r42

2,750

1

(s8)

2,750

135,425 135,425 138,118 2,693

145,006

390,436

t46,006
390,436

72,772

L37,487

73,834

252,949
536,442 536,442 209,659 326,783

(40r,ot7l (401,017) (7L,541) 329,476

93,907 93,907 97,668 3,76L
93,907 93,907 97,668 3,761

(307,110) (307,110) 26,727

324,623

333,237

324,623 324,623

s 17,s13 s !7,s!3 s ISO,ZSO 5 333,237

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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CIW OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

Business-Type
Activities -

Enterprise Funds
Utility Fund

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents
lnvestments - Certificates of Deposits
Accounts Receivable, Net
Due from Other Governments
Advance from Other Funds

lnventories
Prepaids

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Net Pension Asset
Capital Assets:

Land and Land lmprovements
Construction in Progress

Electric Distribution System
Water Distribution System
Sewer Plant and Distribution System
Natural Gas Distribution System
Machinery and Equipment
(Accumulated Depreciation)

Total Capital Assets, Net
Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources
OPEB Related
Pension Related

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

tiabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Compensated Absences - Current
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets - Customer Deposits
Note Payable - Current
Power Costs Recovered in Advance

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
OPEB Obligation
Note Payable

Total Non-Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred lnflow of Resources
OPEB Related
Pension Related

Total Deferred lnflow of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred lnflow of Resources

Net Position
Net lnvestment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted
Total Net Position

s 2,285,475
85,935

910,078
91,648

198,075
276,O52

16,525
3,864,7a8

258,938
399,927

133,966
188,055

4,967,O2s
4,58437a
s,836,3s4
t,920,248
3,050,584

ILZ.4L4.9s4l
8,2s9,696
8.928.561

12,793,349

34,239
299,720
333,959

_!3,!21308

506,898
76,O17

268,938
46,777
64,339

902.953

48,053
r82,502

r,154,339
L384.894
2,287,857

42,92L
293,I57
336.078

2,62t,93s

7,058,586
3,444,787

s 10.s03.373

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

27



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Operating Revenues

Charges for Services

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Electric Power Pu rchased
Natural Gas Purchased

Personal Services
Professional Fees and Services
lnsura nce

Operations and Maintenance
Depreciation and Amortization
Materials and Supplies
Other
Capital Projects

Total Operating Expenses

Operating lncome

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Capital Grants

lnterest lncome
lnterest txpense

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

lncome Before Capital Contributions and Transfers

Capital Contributions and Transfers
Gain on Disposition of Fixed Assets

Transfers (out)

Total Contributions and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

Business-Type

Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Utility Fund

s s,ss7,3r7
5,557,3r7

1,943,874
124,988

1,066,180

742,962
48,r43

307,473
729,824
205,518

5,947
L6,485

5,191,394

365,923

196,956

1,165
(43,59 /)
754,524

520,447

1,593
(890,000)

(888,417)

(367,e70)

r0,87r,343

S 10,503,373

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers/Others
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees for Services

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Operating Transfers to Other Funds

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
lnterest Paid on Notes Payable
Payments on Notes Payable

Capital Grant Proceeds
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from lnvestang Activities
Changes in Certificates of Deposit, Net
lnterest Received

Net Cash Used for lnvesting Activities

Net lncrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Reconciliation of Operatins lncome to Net Cash
Provided bv (Used inl Operatine Activities

Operating lncome
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome to Net Cash

Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense

(lncrease) Decrease in Assets and Deferred Outflows:
(lncrease) in Accounts Receivable
(lncrease) in lnventories
Decrease in Net Pension Asset
Decrease in Deferred Outflows
(lncrease) in Prepaids

lncrease (Decrease) in Liabilities and Deferred lnflows:
(Decrease) in Power Costs Recovered in Advance
lncrease in Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
lncrease in OPEB Obligation
(Decrease) in Compensated Absences
(Decrease) in Customer Deposits Payable
(Decrease) in Deferred lnflows
(Decrease) in Due to Other Governments

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

As Shown in the Accompanying Financial Statements
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Business-Type
Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Utility Fund

5 s,422,978
(1,016,298)
(3,331,s46)

r,07s,o74

(890,000)
(890,000)

(486,926],

143,s97],
144,4291
105,308rc
272,298

1,165

273,463

lr7,ro7l
2,565,520

S 2.ss4.4r3

s 36s,923

729,a24

(39,s03)
(34,Or2)

9,t20
34,458

(LO,6221

(70,s31)

109,025
41",748

(1-1,0s6)

(24,36s)
(24,388)

ls47l
709,L57

-s 1,915M-

2,28s,475
268,938

l--7-554tttL

s

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITV OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

lnvestments, at Fair Value
Contributions Receivable

Due from Other Governments

Total Assets

s

Pension
Trust
Funds

61,038

7,569,653

50,944

30,565

7,711,200

5,815

5,815

S 7,705,385

Liabilities
Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities

Net Position - Held in Trust for Pension Benefits

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF WIILISTON, FTORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

Additions
Contributions:

Employer
State

Employees

Total Contributions

lnvestment Earnings

Total Additions

Benefits Paid

Administrative Expenses

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Held in Trust for Pension Benefits, Beginning of Year

Net Position - Held in Trust for Pension Benefits, End of Year

Pension
Trust
Funds

S 135,052

30,563

90,996
256,6rL

482,2r4

738,82s

644,O97

29,623
673,720

55,105

7,640,280

S 7,705,385

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

Note 1 - Description and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity
The City of Williston, Florida (the City)was established in L897 under Florida Statutes, Section 165.031(4).
The government operates under a Mayor-Council form of government and provides the following services

as authorized by its charter: Public safety (law enforcement, fire, and animal control), public utilities,
streets and sidewalks, parks and playgrounds, airport development, and general government services.

The financial statements of the government have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles.

The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component unit, an entity for
which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the government's operations.

Blended Component Units-The Williston Community Redevelopment Agency (the Agency) is included in
the financial reporting entity as a blended component unit. The Agency is established under Florida
Statutes, Chapter L63, for the purpose of rehabilitation, conservation, and redevelopment of certain slum
and blighted areas in order to serve the interest of public health, safety, morals, and welfare of the
community residents. Members of the Agency's Board are appointed by the government's City Council
for which certain limited power may be delegated to the Agency in carrying out its activities. However,

other powers, including final approval of redevelopment plans and the determination of areas as slum or
blighted, vest in the City Council. The Agency is presented as a special revenue fund in the accompanying
financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the fiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. Governmentol activities, which normally are supported by taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions, are reported separately from business-type octivities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external customers for support. Likewise, the
primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the
primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues.

Basis of Presentation-Government-Wide Financial Statements
While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are inter-related. The
governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds, while business-type activities
incorporate data from the government's enterprise funds. Separate financial statements are provided for
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financia I statements.
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As discussed earlieri the government has one blended component unit. The Agency is included in the
governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial

statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where the amounts are reasonably

equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the government's electric
and water functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Basis of Presentation-Fund Financial Statements
Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, blended

component units and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are

reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The government reports the following major governmental funds

r The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources

of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

r The speciol revenue airport development fund accounts for operations of the government's airport
development and operational related activities.

r The speciol revenue community redevelopment fund accounts for the governmental community
redevelopment activities for the purpose of eliminating and preventing the development of slum and

blighted areas.

The government reports the following major enterprise fund

r The utility fund accounts for all utility activities of the government. The utility fund reflects activities
of the electric systems, the sewage treatment plant and collections systems, the water system, natural
gas distribution systems, and the solid waste department.

Additionally, the government reports the following fiduciary fund

r The pension trust funds account for the activities of the government's Police Officers and General

Employees Retirement Plans and Trusts, which accumulate resources for pension benefit payments to
all qualified employees.

Bosis of Accounting-The government's financial statements for the foregoing pension plans and

trusts are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting for trust funds. Employer and participant

contributions are recognized in the period that contributions are due and payable in accordance with
the terms of each plan.

t Method Used to Value lnvestments-lnvestments in the plans are reported at fair value according to
the independent custodian for each plan using various third-pafi pricing sources.
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Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made-Florida Statutes and the Government's Pension
Board govern employer and employee contribution requirements for each plan. The government's
contributions are actuarially determined to ensure sufficient assets will be available to pay benefits
when due.

t Administrative Costs-The costs of administering each plan are funded using investment earnings.

During the course of operations, the government has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding at year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from
other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are
made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds
included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal
balances in the governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in
business-type activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the
business-type activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources funds. ln the fund financial
statements, these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in the fund
financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial
statements. Transfers between the funds that are included in the governmental activities column.
Similarly, balances between the funds are included in business-type activities are eliminated so that only
the net amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources meosurement focus
and the occrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources meosurement

focus and the modified accrual bosis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be ovailable when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be generally available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. Howeveq debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all

considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received

by the government.

Budgetary Information
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the
general fund, airport fund, and community redevelopment fund. The appropriated budget is prepared by

fund, function, and department. The government's department heads and City Manager may make

transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between departments require
the approval of the City Council. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level.

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents and lnvestments-The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months
or less from the date of acquisition. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, all demand deposits
in the proprietary fund are included in the statement.

State statutes and the government's investment policy authorize the government to invest in obligations of
the U.S. Treasury, interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories, money
market funds, and certain governmental investment pools authorized by the state.

lnvestments for the government are reported at fair value. The certificates of deposits are purchased with
maturities of greater than three months and are considered investments. The government's pension funds
are invested in a pooled account under the Florida Municipal lnvestment Trust Fund, including cash and

cash equivalents, and government and corporate securities. The Fund operates in accordance with state
laws and regulations. The reported value of the pension funds' investments is the same as the fair value of
the pool shares.

Accounts Receivable and Due lrom Other Governments-Utility operating revenues are generally
recognized on the basis of cycle billings rendered monthly. The amount of services delivered after the last

billing date and up to September 30 is estimated and accrued at year-end.

Due from Other Governments represent amounts due from the federal, state or local governments, State
of Florida, or Levy County for shared revenues or costs. The amount is considered collectible in full within
60 days of fiscal year-end.

Inventories and Prepoids-All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.
lnventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Capital Assets-Capital assets, which include land, plant distribution systems, machinery and equipment,
and infrastructure assets (if purchased after 2003) (e,g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are

reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than 55,000. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased

or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. lnterest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Land, plant and equipment of the government is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets

Buildings

Plant Distribution System
lmprovements
Vehicles
Machinery and Equipment

Years
20-50

5-50

5-50

3-10
5-40

Long-Term Obligotions-ln the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
position.

Governmentol Fund Balonces-The GASB has promulgated Statement No. 54, entitled Fund Balonce
Reporting and Governmentol Fund Type Definitions. The Statement is designed to do two things: L) it
clarifies the definition of what activities are to be reported within different types of governmental funds
(general fund, special revenue fund type, capital project fund type, debt service fund type, and permanent
fund type); and 2) it provides clearer fund balance definitions that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on
the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources
reported in governmental funds as follows:

Non-Spendable-Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory) are required to be

maintained intact,

t Restricted-Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors,
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling
legislation.

t Committed-Amounts constrained to specific purposes by the City itself, using its highest level of
decision-making authority (i.e., City Council). To be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used
for any other purpose unless the City takes the highest level action to remove or the City Council
approves the change.
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. Assigned-Amounts the City intends to use for a specific purpose. lntent can be expressed by the City
Council or by an official or body to which the City Council delegates authority.

t Unassigned-Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are only reported in the
General Fund.

The City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority of the City, and approves the
establishment, increase, and reduction in Committed fund balances by budget resolutions and
amendments. Restricted and Commitfed fund balances are always used first for the purposes for which
they were designated. Changes to this practice require prior City Council approval. A minimum fund
balance amount has not been formally adopted.

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Program Revenues-Arnounts reported as progrdm revenues include: 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital
grants and contributions, including special assessments. lnternally dedicated resources are reported as

general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Property Tax Revenue Recognition-Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection
of all county, municipal, and school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County
Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws of the state regulating tax assessments are also

designed to assure a consistent property valuation method state-wide. Florida Statutes permit
municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills. The City levied a rate of 6.25 mills in the
2019 tax roll.

The tax levy of the City is established by the City Council prior to October L of each year and the Levy

County Property Appraiser incorporates the City's millage into the total tax levy, which includes the County
and the County School Board tax requirements.

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value January 1 of each year. Each assessment roll is

submitted to the Executive Director of the Florida Department of Revenue for review to determine if the
rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of Florida Statutes.

All taxes are levied on November 1 of each year, or as soon thereafter, as the assessment roll is certified
and delivered to the County Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1 following the
year in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate of 4% in the month
of November,3o/oin the month of December, 2%inthe month of January, and!% in the month of February.
Taxes paid in March are without discount.

On, or prior to, June 1 following the tax year, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real property.
After sale, tax certificates bear interest of L8% per year or at any lower rate bid by the buyer. Application
for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the certificate holder after a period of
two years. Unsold certificates are held by the County.

Delinquent taxes on personal property bear interest of L8% per year until the tax is satisfied either by
seizure and sale of the property or by the five-year statute of limitations.
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The City does not accrue its portion of the County-held tax sale certificates or personal property tax
warrants because such amounts are not measurable and available as of the balance sheet date.

Compensoted Absences-lt is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but
unused vacation and sick pay benefits. There is no liability for three quarters of the unpaid accumulated
sick leave since the government has a policy to pay only one quarter of such pay benefits when employees
separate from service with the government. All vacation pay and one quarter of sick pay is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these
amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

Operating ond Non-Operoting Revenues and Expenses-Proprietary funds distinguish operdting
revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the government's utility system
enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The government also recognizes as

operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits
The City receives on-behalf payments from the State of Florida to be used for Police Officers' Retirement
Plan Contributions. On-behalf payments to the City totaled SEO,S6g for the year ended September 30,2020.
Such payments are recorded as intergovernmental revenue and public safety expenditures in the generally

accepted accounting principles basis government-wide and general fund financial statements.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and AccountabiliW

Budgetary lnformation
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue, enterprise,
and pension trust funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Project-length financial
budgets are adopted for all capital projects funds.

Prior to August 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following October L. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and
the means of financing them. Public hearings are conducted in August and September to obtain taxpayer
comments. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally adopted and approved. Revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.
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The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The government's City Manager
may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between
departments require approval by the City Council by resolution under the government's charter. The legal
level of budgetary control is the fund level. Further, Florida Statutes, Section L66.241, requires the
government to expend or contract for expenditures only in pursuance of budgeted appropriations. There
were no material violations of budgetary or other legal and contractual provisions requiring disclosure.

Note 3 - Deposits and lnvestments

Interest Rate

Risk

TYpe Fair Value Level

Credit

Ratincs
Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Non-Pension lnvestments):

Cash Deposits

Petty Cash

lnvestments:

Certificates of Deposit

Total

Pension Cash and lnvestments:

Police Officer Pension:

FMiW Cash and Money Market
FM|W Broad Market High Quality Bond

FMiW Core Plus

FM|W Diversified Large Cap Equity

FM|W Small to Mid-Cap Equity Fund

FMiW lnternational Equity Portfolio

FM|W Core Real Estate Portfolio

Regular Employee Pension:

FMiW Cash and Money Market
FMiVT Broad Market High Quality Bond

FMiW Core Plus

FMiW Diversified Large Cap Equity

FM|W Small to Mid-Cap Equity Fund

FMiW lnternational Equity Portfolio

FMIW Core Real Estate Portfolio
Total Pension Cash and lnvestments

Total

s 3,s01,011

2,000

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A86,935

22,401,

389,2L2
392,OL2

1,010,830

285,608

445,2t3
254,808

38,637

671,3L5

676,t45
1,743,488

492,620

757,908

439,494

7.629.691
S rt.2r9.637

N/A

6.6 Years

5.82 Years

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Nut Rated

N/A

6.6 Years

5.82 Years

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

3.589.946

2

3

2

2

2

3

N/A

AAf/s4
Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

NuI Rated

N/A

Mf/S4
Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

Not Rated

2

3

2

2

2

3
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As shown in the Statement of Net Position

Entity-Wide Cash and Cash Equivalents

Entity-Wide Non-Pension lnvestments

Entity-Wide Restricted Cash and

Cash Equivalents

Pension Cash and Money Market
Pension lnvestments

Total
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Fair Value

s 3,234,073

86,935

268,938

61,038

7.568.653

s________u,re.w

Fair Value Hierarchy
The City holds assets that are defined as short-term investments. The City's investments are recorded at
fair value unless the investment qualifies as an external investment pool under the guidance in GASB

Statement No. 79. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value into three levels:

Level 1-lnputs - are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that a

government can access at the measurement date.

Level 2-lnputs - are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for an

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These inputs are derived from, or corroborated by,
observable market data through correlation or by other means.

Level 3-lnputs - are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest
prioritytoLevellinputsandthelowestprioritytoLevel3inputs. lfapriceforanidenticalassetorliability
is not observable, a government should measure fair value using another valuation technique that
maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs.

Custodial Credit Risk-Cash Deposits
The City's cash deposits are covered by Federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the City's
custodial bank, which is pledged to a state trust fund that provides security for amounts held in excess of
Federal Deposit lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage in accordance with lhe Florida Security for Public
Deposits Acf, Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

The Florida Security for Public Deposits Act (the Act) established guidelines for qualification and
participation by banks and savings associations, procedures for the administration of the collateral
requirements and characteristics of eligible collateral. Under the Act, the qualified public depository must
pledge at least 50% of the average daily balance for each month of all public deposits in excess of any

applicable deposit insurance. Additional collateral up to a maximum of I25o/o may be required if deemed
necessary under conditions set forth in the Act.

The government's investment policies are governed by state statutes and local ordinance. The basic

allowable investment instruments include Local Government Surplus Funds, or any governmental
investments pool authorized pursuant to the Florida lnterlocol Act, as provided by Section 163, Florida

Statutes, SEC registered money market funds with the highest credit quality rating, interest bearing time
deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories, and direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.
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The government's pension trust funds are held in the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund (FMPTF). The
FMPI-F is established as a trust whereby governmental entities with employee pension or other
postemployment benefit plans may elect to join the trust and with the trust providing the plans with
administrative and investment services for the benefit of Participating Employers, Participating
Employees, and Beneficiaries. All employee pension plan assets with the FMPTF are included in the trust's
Master Trust Fund. Employee pension plan assets of the defined benefit type are invested by the FMPTF

through the Florida Municipal lnvestment Trust (FMlvT) for the benefit of the Participating Employers,
participating Employees, and Beneficiaries.

The FMlvT, administered by the Florida League of Cities, lnc., is an interlocal governmental entity created
under the laws of the State of Florida. The FMIvT is an Authorized lnvestment under Sec. 163.01 Florida
Statutes. The FMIvT is a Local Government lnvestment Pool (LGIP) and is considered an external
investment pool for GASB reporting purposes; however, subject to the fair value reporting under GASB

Statement No. 72.

At September 30,2020, the government's investment balances consisted of certificates of deposit with
local banks and the pension trust funds held in the FMPTF. Asset allocation in the FMPTF external
investment poolat September 30,2020, is as follows:

Asset Allocation
Cash and Money Market
Broad Market High Quality Bond

Core Plus

Diversified Large Cap Equity
Diversified Small to Mid-Cap Equity
lnternational Equity
Core Real Estate Portfolio

Total

Asset
Allocation
Percentage

0.8o/o

13.9%

L4.O%

35.to/o

IQ.2o/o

15.9o/o

9.Io/o

loo.oo/"

Interest Rdte Risk-lnterest rate risk exists when there is a possibility the change in interest rates could
adversely affect an investment's fair value. The City does not have a policy for interest rate risk. The

weighted average maturity (WAM) of the underlying debt investments in the FMPTF pool is used to
determine interest rate risk when applicable.

Credit Rt3k-Credit risk exists when there is a probability that the issuer or other counterparty to an

investment may be unable to fulfill its obligations. The government's investment policy limits exposure to
credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk-Under GASB Statement No. 40, disclosure is only required if investments are
uninsured, unregistered, and held by either the counterpart of the counterparty's trust department or
agent but not in the City's name. The City's investments are through the FMPTF in the FMIW, which are
evidenced by shares in the pool. lnvestments in the pools should be disclosed but not categorized because

they are not evidenced by securities that exist in a physical or book entry form. The City's investments are

with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool and, therefore, no disclosure is required.

Foreign Current Risk-The City's investments are part of FMiW and those investments are not subject to
foreign current risk.
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Note 4 - CapitalAssets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30,2020, was as follows:

Beginnin8 Balance lncreases Decreases

Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, Not Being

Depreciated:

Land

Construction in Progress

Total capital Assets, Not Being

Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated:

Buildings and lmprovements

Equipment

Total Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated

Less Accumulated

Depreciation for:

Buildings and lmprovements

Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated, Net

Total Governmental Activities

Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities

Capital Assets, Not Being

Depreciated:

Land and Land lmprovements

Construction in Progress - CDBG

Construction in Progress - Non-CDBG

Total Capital Assets, Not

Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated:

Plant and Distribution

Systems

Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated

Less Accumulated

Depreciation for:

Plant and Distribution

Systems

Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being

Depreciated, Net

Eusiness-Type Activities Capital

Assets, Net

L,468,579 190,930

2s,320,99s 204,466

117,12r,9791 117,147,8261

L4,L99,016 (943,350)

5 133,965 5 5

188,0ss

133,966 188,055

20,o52,\76 300,453

(11,68s,130) (72s,824]'

8,367,046 l42e,37Ll

5 8,501,012 S (241,316) S

Transferc/

Adjustments Ending Balance

5 7,4t3,225 s

55,354

96,010 5

94,920

s s 1,s09,23s

LSO,274

1,659,509

20,764396

4,552,599

49,583

154,883

20,8L7,979

4,707,482

25,525,46r

(8,0s4,379)

(3,057,600)

(873,806)

l274,O2Ol

(8,928,18s)

(3,341,620)

lt2,269,$Osl

13,255,656

s 15,567,s9s 5 (7s2,430)s - 5 rq,grs,ros

133,966

188,055

322,027

s

17,226,049

2,a26,127

70,588

229,865

17,296,637

3,055,992

20,3s2,629

(9,932,s791

(t,7s2,sstl
(s47,368)

(182,4s6)
1r0,479,9471

(1,93s,007)

(L2,414,9541

7,937,675

s
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental Activities
General Government
Law Enforcement
Communications
Planning and Zoning

Streets and Sidewalks

Building and Permitting
Fire Control
Parks and Playgrounds

Library
Community Redevelopment
Animal Control
Airport Operations

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activlties

Business-Type Activities
Electric
Water
Natural Gas

Sewer

Sanitation
Administrative Services - Utility

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities

s 2,955
82,694

875

827

57,647
1,108

79,357
42,r78
13,168
48,945
3,938

8r4,135
LJJa.,8n

82,726
189,755
1o9,744
158,995

97,OO8

91.596

s___JEeA

Note 5 - lnterfund Receivable, Pavables. Transfers, and Advances

The outstanding balances between funds result mainly from the time lag between the dates that interfund
goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur. All amounts are expected to be paid

within one year. Noted no amounts receivable and/or payable as of fiscal year-end.

The composition of interfund advances as September 30,2020, is as follows

Advanced To (Due Tol

s

Advanced From (Due From)
Utility Fund

Airport Fund

nt
General Fund

General Fund
s 198,075

77,474

The advance to the Utility Fund was to fund the purchase of a fire truck. No payments were made in the
current year. The due to the Airport Fund was to fund operating and capital shortfalls in the fund.

The City makes transfers among its funds in the course of the fiscal year. The principal purpose of the
transfers is to allocate resources from the enterprise funds to the general fund to assist with various
governmental activities. Also, transfers are used to move unrestricted general fund revenues to
finance various activities that the government must account for in the other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorlzations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant
programs. A summary of interfund transfers follows:
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Major Funds

General Fund
Utility Fund

Community Redevelopment Fund
Total lnterfund Transfers

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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lnterfund
Transfers ln Transfers (Outl

890,000 s

97.668

s_______982-668 s________987S68

Note6-Long-TermDebt

Bank Notes Reloted to Governmental Activities-The government has one bank promissory note, which
was for the purpose of financing a fire truck. lnterest rate on the note is2.5O%. The original loan amount
was 5148,900 and is secured by a pledge of revenues received from Levy County for fire protection
services. AtSeptember3O,2O2O,total interestpaidonthisnotewasSl,650andthefinal paymentwill
be made during the2022-2023 fiscalyear.

New City Hall Bank Note-ln May 2018, the City obtained a bank note with a local bank for up to 53,000,000
to finance the demolition of the old City Hall building and construction of the new City Hall building. The

interest rate is 3.5o/o from May 8, 2018 through May 8, 2039. The City will make 12 monthly payments of
interest only, beginning May 8, 2OI8, followed by 24O payments in the amount required to amortize the
unpaid principal balance. All outstanding principal and interest are due on May 8, 2039. At September 30,

2020, the interest rate was 3.5% and total interest paid on this note was 543,597.

General Long-Term Debt Schedules:

s 97,668
890,000

Note Payable

Year Ended

September 30,2020
202t
2022
2023
Total

Business-Type long-Term Debt Schedules:

Year Ended

Seotember 30. 2020
202r
2022
2023
2024
202s

2026-2030
2031-2035
2036-2040

Total

Direct Borrowings
Governmental Activities

Principal Interest

s 22,31t
22,876
7,954

s 1,069
505

40

S______-_--53J41 S--_-___-__i*614

Direct Borrowings
Business-Tvpe Activities - Utilitv Svstem

Princioal lnterest
ss 46,77r

48,435
50,158
5L,942
53,789

299,039
356,139
294,837

4r,255
39,591

37,869
36,085

34,237
r41,Ogt
83,992

t9,o7s
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Chonges in Long-Term Liabilities-Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30,20t9, was as

follows:

Beginning
Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities
Direct Borrowing
Note Payable - Fire Truck

Compensated Absences

Special Termination Benefits

Payable t**
Other Postemployment Benefits

Net Pension Liability (FRS and HIS)

Total Governmental Activities
Long-Term Activities

Business-Type Activities
Direct Borrowings

Note Payable:
City Hall

Compensated Absences
Other Postemployment Benefits

Total Business-Type Activities

Description of Pledge

s 74,87r s
r38,704

20,s93
2\L,883
856,742

s (21,730) s
(138,704)

53,\41 s
133,990

22,3rL
33,498133,990

L,725

55,259

495,185

lzL,7tgl
267,742

L,351,927

s 1,302,793 5 0AS,SSS s (182.152) s r,sOO,zOO S ss,8o9

.79,7061

S 1,461,419 s 6s,e69 s (7e,706) s Lqq,Asz s aztae

*** Special terminationbenefitsconsistofmonthlyretirementbenefitspayabletotheformerMayoroftheCity. Thisbenefitwas
based on services rendered to the City for greater than 20 years and is payable over the former Mayor's remaining life. On July 1,

2020, the Mayor passed away and the estimated balance of the benefits payable as of Septembe r 30,2020, was 50.00.

Pledged Revenues
The City has pledged certain revenues, to repay loans outstanding as of September 30,2020. The following
table reports the revenues, pledged for each note issued, the amounts of such revenues received in the
current year, the current year principal and interest paid on the debt, the approximate percentage of each
revenue, which is pledged to meet the note obligation, the date through which the revenue is pledged

under the note agreement, and the total pledged future revenues for each note, which is the amount of
the remaining principal and interest on the notes at September 30,2O2O:

t,245,539
75,L26

140,754

(44,4291

68,650

4L,748

1,201,110

64,O70

L82,502

46,77L

t6,oL7

Notes Revenue

Revenue

Received

Principal

and

lnterest

Estimated

Percentate

OutstandinB

Principal and

lnterest

Pledged

Pledeed Throuph

Governmental

Activity

Note Payable:

Fire Truck Levy County Board of
County Commissioners

for Revenues Fire

Protection Services S S s4,7ss248,522 s 23,380
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Principal

Description of
Notes

Pledge

Revenue

Revenue

Received

lnterest

Estimated

Percentage

Pledsed

outstanding

Principal and

lnterest

Pledged

Throush

and

Paid

Business-Type

Activity

Note Payable:

City Hall Loan Net System

Revenues (1)(2) s 1,0s8,633 s 88,026 8% S 1,634,30s 2039

(1) Net system Revenues - all excess revenues received by the City for the operation of utility system (after payment of associated

operation and maintenance expense).
(21 Per the loan agreement, pledged revenues for the City Hall Note will be "all utility system revenues". Additionally, the City

agrees to pledge such additional non-ad valorem tax revenues as is necessary. lnformation for pledged revenue amounts

will be included when loan balance outstanding is finalized.

Note 7 - Other Postemplovment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description - OPEB Plan is a single employer benefit plan administered by the City.

Pursuant to the provision of Section 112.0801, Florida Statutes, former employees who retire from the
City and their dependents are eligible to participate in the City's Health Plan for health and life insurance,
as long as they pay a full premium applicable to the coverage elected.

Benefits Provided - The OPEB Plan is a single employer benefit plan administered by the City. The retirees
are charged the same premium amount the insurance company charges for the type of coverage elected.
However, the premiums set by the insurance company are based on average experiences among younger
active employees and older retired employees. The older retirees would have a higher cost for health
insurance coverage without the City's subsidizing the cost of the retiree coverage because it pays all or a

significant portion of the premium on behalf of the active employees. Per GASB Statement No. 75, this is

called the "implicit rate subsidy".

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms - At October I, 2OI9, the date of the most recent actuarial
valuation, plan participation consisted of the following covered by the benefit terms:

lnactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefit Payments

Active Plan Members
Total Participants

1

51

52

Contributions - For the OPEB Plan, contribution requirements of the City are established and may be

amended through action from the City Council. Currently the City's OPEB benefits are unfunded. The
actual contributions are based on pay-as-you-go financing requirements. There is not a separate trust
fund or equivalent arranged in which the City would make contributions to advance-fund the obligation,
as it does for its pension funds.

Net OPEB tiability - The City's net OPEB liability was measured as of September 30, 2020, and the total
OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date.
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability in the September 30, 2020, actuarial valuation was

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified:

Discount Rate: 2.74% per annum; this rate was used to discount all future benefit
payments and based on the return on the S & P Municipal Bond 2O-year

High Grade lndex as of the measurement date.

lnflation: 350%

Salary lncreases: 3.OO% per annum

lnvestment Rate of Return: 2.L4%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: lncreases in healthcare costs are assumed to be 7.00% for the 2O19/2O2O

fiscal year graded down by O.5O% per year to 5.00% for the 2023124 and
later fiscal years.

Mortality Basis Sex-distinct rates set forth in the PU8-2010 Mortality Table for general

and public safety employees, with full generational improvements in

mortality using Scale MP-2077.

Changes: Since the prior measurement date, the discount rate was decreased from
3.58% per annum to 2.L4% per annum and the monthly implied subsidy
at age 55 for the2OLS/2O fiscalyearforthe retiree and his spouse was

decreased from SZ1S.O0 to 5250.00. The mortality basis was changed
from the RP-2000 Mortality Table with generational improvements in
mortality using Scale BB to the PUB-2010 Mortality Table with
generational improvements in mortality using Scale MP-2017 Employees
Covered: Regular; full-time employees for the City.

Types of Benefits Offered: Post-retirement medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits.

Premium Retirees must pay the full monthly premium as determined by the
insurance carrier for coverage other than medical and life insurance

coverage for the retiree himself and must pay the full cost of health
insurance coverage for himself above any explicit subsidies provided by
the City. The City pays any applicable premiums for single coverage under
the medical insurance program until age 65 for those employees who
retire on or after age62 with at least 25 years of service and who were
covered under the City's health insurance program for at least five years

immediately prior to their retirement. ln addition, the City pays the entire
premium for a 515,000 life insurance policy to each retiree. Life insurance
coverage decreases by 35% upon the attainment of age 65 and decreases
by another 15% upon the attainment of age 70.
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Changes in the OPEB tiability - for the fiscal year ended September 30,2020, were as follows:

Total OPEB

Liabilitv
S 3s2,637Balance at September 30, 2019

Changes for a Year:

Service Cost

Demographic Gain/Loss

Assumption Changes

Expected lnterest Growth
Benefit Payments and Refunds

Net Changes
Balance at September 30,2O2O

91,224
(91,515)

91,882
9,456

(4.040)

97.O07

5________aE-644

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates -
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.0 percent) or 1-percentage-
point higher (8.0 percent) than the current discount rate:

Comoarison of Net OPEB Liabilitv Using Alternative Discount Rates

1% Decrease 3.58% Discount Rate 1% lncrease
Net OPEB Liability s01,009 s 449,644 s 403,681

Comparison of Net OPEB Liabilitv Using Alternative Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

1% Decrease

7.5% Graded Down
to 5cl6 1% lncrease

Net OPEB Liability 380,053 s 449,644 s 535,817

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - For the year

ended September 30, 2020, the City recognized OPEB expense of 594,166. At September 30, 2020, the
City reported 584,357 of deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB of S105,157.

s

s

Year Deferred Outflows
s 7,525

7,525
7,525
7,525
7,525

46.732

Deferred lnflows
202I
2022
2023
2024
2025

Thereafter
Total

9,999

9,999

9,999

9,999
9,999

56.162

s

s______________8 s_____________1@!t
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Note 8 - Emplovee Retirement Plans

Defined Contribution Plan
The City provides a 457 Deferred Compensation Plan for the City Manager. Contributions to the Plan for
the year ended September 30,2020, were 57,269.

Defined Benefits Plans
The City maintains two single employer, defined benefit plans that separately cover full-time police officer
employees and all other general employees. Prior to October I, 2004, the City's police officers were
covered under the same defined benefit plan along with the City's general employees. Effective October 1,

2004, the City established a separate plan and trust for police officers and transferred all liabilities for any
accrued benefits, and the cash equivalents equal to the present value to paythe accrued benefits, to the
new plan and trust.

Police Officers Plan

Retirement Plan and Trust for Police Officers-The City sponsors and administers the Retirement Plan for
the Police Officers of the City of Williston (the tlan). The Plan is considered a defined benefit single-employer
plan and is accounted for as a separate pension trust fund. The Plan covers all full-time police officers. A
City employee shall become a participant of the Plan at the time of employment. Participants contribute 5%

of compensation to the Plan, whereas the City is required to contribute an amount actuarially determined
usingthe aggregate actuarialcost method, currently 2052% (October L,2020) of covered payroll. The cost
of administering the Plan is financed by investment earnings.

Name of the Pension Plan Retirement Plan and Trust for Police Officers of the City of Williston.

Legal Plan Administrator: Board of Trustees of the Retirement Plan for the Police Officers of the
City of Williston Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan.

Pension Plan Reporting: The Plan issues a stand-alone financial report each year, which contains
information about the Plan's fiduciary net position. The Plan's fiduciary
net position has been determined on the same basis used by the
pension plan and is equal to the market value of the assets as calculated
under the accrual basis of accounting. This report is available to the
public at the Plan's administrative office: Retirement Department,
Florida League of Cities, lnc. P.O. Boxt757, Tallahassee, Florida 32302,
(800) 342-8112.
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Description of Benefit Terms
Employees Covered:

Types of Benefits Offered:
Basic Pension Formula:
Early Retirement Adjustment:

Disability Pension:

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit:

Normal Retirement Age:

Early Retirement Age:

Vesting Requirement:

Form of Payment:

Average Earnings:

Cost-of-Livi ng Adj ustm ent:
Deferred Retirement Option

Plan (DROP):

LegalAuthority:

Plan Amendments:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CIW OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

Full-time police officers employed by the City of Williston.
Retirement, disability, and pre-retirement death benefits.
3.OO% ol average earnings times service.
Early retirement pension is reduced by 3% for each year by which the
early retirement date precedes the normal retirement date.
Larger of basic pension formula or 42% of average earnings (for service-
con nected disabilities).
Larger of basic pension formula or 25Yo of average earnings (for non-
service-connected disabilities).
Disability benefits are offset as necessary to preclude the total of the
disabi lity compensation from exceedi ng average ea rnings.

Basic pension formula payable for 10 years at early or normal retirement
age (payable to the beneficiary of vested participant).

Return of accumulated employee contributions (payable to the
beneficiary of a non-vested participant).
Age 55 with at least five years of service (only for participants who were
fully vested at the time of the their transfer into the Plan from the general

employees' plan prior to June 1, 2008), or Age 55 with at least L0 years

of service, or Age 52 with at least 25 years of service, or any age with at
least 30 years of service.

Age 50 with at least 1-0 years of service.
100% vesting after five years of service (only for participants who were
fully vested at the time of their transfer into the Plan from the general

employees' plan prior to June 1, 2008), or tOO% vesting after 10 years of
service.
Actuarially increased single life annuity 10-year certain and life annuity.
Actuarially equivalent soyo, 662t3yo,75yo, or IOO% joint and contingent
annuity. Any other actuarially equivalent form of payment approved by

the Board ofTrustees.
Average of the highest five-years of pensionable earnings out of the last
10 years.

No automatic cost-of-living adjustment is provided.

A participant who has attained their normal retirement age is eligible to
participate in the DROP for a period of up to 60 months. The DROP

accounts are credited with interest at the rate of 6.50% per annum.
The Plan was established effective October t, 2004, pursuant to City
ordinance and has been amended several times since that date.
Since the completion of the previous valuation, Ordinances 638 and 64L
were adopted. These Ordinances added a DROP provision. This addition
of the DROP had no actuarial impact.
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Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Actuarlal Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method
Non-lnvestment Expenses

lnformation used to determine the Net Pension Liability

Employer's Reporting Date:

Measurement Date:

Actuarial Valuation Date:

Mortality Basis

Retirement

Future Contributions

Changes

Actuarial Assumptions:
lnvestment Rate of Return

Projected Salary lncreases

Non-lnvestment Expenses

lncludes lnflation at *

Discount Rate

Cost of Living Adjustments
Changes

September 30,2O2O
September 30,2O2O

October l,2Ol9

Aggregate

Level Percentage, Open
30 Years

Market Value
Liabilities have been loaded by 2.75% to account for
non-investment expenses.
Sex-distinct rates set forth in the RP-2000 Blue Collar

Mortality Table, with full generational improvements
in mortality using Scale BB.

Retirement is assumed to occur at normal retirement
age.

Contributions from the employer and employees are
assumed to be made as legally required,
No assumptions were changed since the prior
measurement date.

7.O0o/o

4.5O%per annum
Liabilities have been loaded bV 2.75%
2s2%
7.00% (2.77% per annum is due to inflation)
0.0%
No assumptions were changed since the prior
measurement date.

*Same assumptions as used for the actuarial valuation of system.

Determination of Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets:

lnvestment Category

Target

Allocation

Expected Long-Term

Real Return

Core Bonds

Core Plus

U.S. Large Cap Equity

U.S. Small Cap Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Core Real Estate

Total or Weiehted Arithmetic Averaee

75.OO%

L5.O0%

34.O0%

17.00%

15.oo%

IO.OOo/"

100.00%

1.60% per annum

2.10% per annum

4.60% per annum

5.50% per annum

6.70% per annum

5.00% per annum

4.23% per annum
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Current membership in the Plan is comprised of the following

October 1,

2020
Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits
Terminated Plan Participants Entitled to but not yet

Receiving Benefits
Active Plan Participants

Total 22

The components of the net pension liability (asset) of the sponsor on September 30, 2020, were as follows

4

6

t2

The differences between the actuarial financial statements and the pension financial statement were due
to timing differences.

The investments in the Police Officers separate Share Plan are not included in the calculation of the Plan

Fiduciary Net Position, however, are included in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. These

investments totaled 5205,606 as of September 30, 2020.

Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
Total Pension Liability (Asset)

Pension Expense

Service Cost

Other Recognized Changes in Net Pension Liability:
Expected lnterest Growth
lnvestment Gain/Loss
Demographic Gain/Loss
Employee Contributions
Adm inistrative Expenses

Assumption Changes
Total Pension Expense

Deferred lnflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Balance as of September 30, 2019
Amortization Payments
lnvestment Gain/Loss

Demographic Gain/Loss
Balance as of September 30, 2020

295,763 s
(65,650)

16,728
19.888

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

s 2,532,969
(2.624.67sI

s (91.806)

ro3.62%

s 138,458

5,999
(2O,5121

(2,L4sl
(26,958)

10,160
20.920

s______t?s,g22

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

S 175,015
(67,3871
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Amortization schedule for deferred outflows and inflows of resources:

Year Ending
Seotember 30.

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

202L
2022
2023
2024
202s

Thereafter
Total

65,650 s
65,649
63,205
47,735
4,602

63,tt6
37,658

8,393

6,491
5,989
s,869

s

S-------------rc,84! L-------l::Er6

Sensitivity of the Net Pension tiability (Asset| to Changes in the Discount Rate

1% Decrease
Discount

Rate - 7.00% 1% lncrease
Total Pension Liability
Less Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Assetf :

Reporting Period Ended September 30, 2019

Change for a Year:

Service Cost

lnterest

U nexpected lnvestment I ncome

Demographic Experience

Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions
Benefit Payments and Refunds

Administrative Expenses

Assumption Changes

Reporting Period Ended September 30,2O2O

624.67s1

s________20s288 s________le$06) s_______J34334e)

s 2,832,963 s 2,532,869 s
Q.624.67sl

2,28t,226
(2.624.6751

Total Pension

Liabilitv lal
Plan Fiduciary

Net Position lbl
Net Pension

Asset (a+bl

s 2,585,s25 s

138,4s8

186,496

(19,888)

(L80,497)

76,728

(109,s78)

(26,9s8)

357,722

10,160

138,458

5,999

L6,728
(19,888)

(109,s78)

(26,9s8)

12,692,2s2't s (106,727],

(3s7,7221

10,150

L______2.532-869 S______J2.6a.675) 5________J91f06)

GeneralEmployees Plan

Retirement Plan and Trust for Generol Employees-The government sponsors and administers the
Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Employees of the government (the Plan). The Plan is considered
a defined benefit single-employer plan and is accounted for as a separate pension trust fund. The Plan

covers all full-time general employees. A government employee shall become a participant of the Plan at
the time of employment.
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Name of Pension Plan:

Legal Plan Administrator:

Type of Plan:

Current Contribution
Requirements:

Pension Plan Reporting

Description of Benefit Terms:
Employees Covered:

Types of Benefits Offered:
Basic Pension Formula:
Early Retirement Adjustment:

Disability Pension:

Pre-Retirement Death Benefit:

Normal Retirement Age:

Early Retirement Age:

Vesting Requirement:
Form of Payment:

Average Earnings:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Retirement Plan for the General Employees of the City of Williston.
Board of Trustees of the Retirement Plan for the General Employees of
the City of Williston Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan.

Single-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan.

Employer contributions are actuarially determined, employees
contribute 5.OO% of pensionable earnings; employee contribution
requirement may be amended by City ordinance but employer
contribution requirement is subject to State minimums.
The Plan issues a stand-alone financial report each year, which contains
information about the Plans fiduciary net position. The Plan's fiduciary
net position has been determined on the same basis used by the pension
plan and is equal to the market value of the assets as calculated under
the accrual basis of accounting. This report is available to the public at
the Plan's administrative office: Retirement Department, Florida League

of Cities, lnc. P.O. Box IT5T,Tallahassee, Florida 32302, (800) 342-8L12.

Full-time employees of the City of Williston, other than Police Officers
and the City Manager.
Retirement, disability, and pre-retirement death benefits.
2.25% of average earnings times service.
The early retirement pension is actuarially equivalent to the normal
retirement pension.

The disability pension is actuarially equivalent to the normal retirement
pension.

The pre-retirement death benefit is actuarially equivalent to the normal
retirement pension and is payable as a single life annuity or as a single

lump sum payment to the beneficiary of a vested participant. Return of
accumulated employee contributions (payable to the beneficiary of a

non-vested participant).
Age 62 with at least five years of service.
Age 55 with at least five years of service.
100% vesting after five years of service.
Single life annuity. Actuarially equivalent 10-year certain and life
annuity. Actuarially equivalent s}yo, 66213yo,75yo, or LOO% joint and

contingent annuity. Actuarially equivalent single lump sum payment.

Any other actuarially equivalent form of payment approved by the Board

of Trustees.
Average of the highest five years of pensionable earnings out of the last

L0 years; pensionable earnings include total compensation other than
bonuses, Iump sum payments, overtime pay, and extraordinary
compensation.
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None
A deferred retirement option plan (DROP) is available to those
participants who have attained their early or normal retirement age and

individuals may participate in the DROP for up to 60 months; DROP

accounts are credited with interest at the rate of 6.500/o per annum.
The Plan was established effective October L, 1983, pursuant to City

ordinance and has been amended severaltimes since that date.
The benefit terms did not change from the prior measurement date.

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows

Cost-of-Livi ng Adj ustment :

DROP:

LegalAuthority:

Changes

Valuation Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Remaining Amortization Period
Asset Valuation Method
Mortality Basis

Retirement

Non-lnvestment Expenses

Future Contributions

Changes

Actuarial Assumptions:
lnvestment Rate of Return
Projected Salary lncreases
Non-l nvestment Expenses

lncludes lnflation at *

Discount Rate

Cost of Living Adjustments
Changes

October L,z0tg
Aggregate
Level Percentage, Open
30 Years

Market Value
Sex-distinct rates set forth in the RP-2000 Mortality
Table, with full generational improvements in

mortality using Scale BB.

Retirement is assumed to occur at normal
retirement age.

Liabilities have been loaded by 2.75% to account
for non-investment expenses.
Contributions from the employer and employees
are assumed to be made as legally required.
The benefit terms did not change from the prior
measurement date.

7.OO%

4.OO%

Liabilities have been loaded by 2.25%
3.2s%
7.00% (2.77% per annum is due to inflation)
o.o%

No assumptions were changed since the prior
measurement date.

*Same assumptions as used for the actuarial valuation of system.
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Current membership in the Plan is comprised of the following:

Group
Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits
Terminated Plan Participants Entitled to but not yet

Receiving Benefits
Plan Participants:

Active
Total

Pension Expense
Service Cost

Other Recognized Changes in Net Pension Liability
Expected lnterest Growth
lnvestment Gain/Loss
Demographic Gain/Loss

Employee Contributions
Administrative Expenses

Assumption Changes
Pension Expense (Negativel

Determination of Long-Term Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets:

October 1,

2020

4t

95

s 1773.4241

778.97o/o

s 189,719

(4s,e13)

(50,492)
(70,s88)
(64,038)

19,065

81,651

s____________59J@

20

34

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

The components of the net pension liability of the sponsor on September 30, 2020, were as follows

Total Pension Liability
Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Sponsor's Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
Total Pension Liability

S 4,076,93L
8s0.3ss)

The differences between the actuarial financial statements and the pension financial statement were due
to timing differences related to investments.

lnvestment Category

Target

Allocation
Expected Long-Term

Real Return

Core Bonds

Core Plus

U.S. Large Cap Equity

U.S. Small Cap Equity

Non-U.S. Equity

Core Real Estate

Total or Weishted Arithmetic Averase

t5.oo%

$.00%
34.00%

11-.OOo/"

$.00%
]O.OOo/"

I00.oo%

1.60% per annum

2.10% per annum

4.60% per annum

5.50% per annum

6.70% per annum

5.00% per annum

4.23% per annum
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Deferred lnflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Total of Components:
Balance as of September 30, 2019

Amortization Payments

lnvestment Gain/Loss

Demographic Gain/Loss

Balance as of September 30, 2020

Year Ending

Seotember 30,

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
lnflows of
Resources

705,120 s
(L46,404l,

20,9r5
6s.801

S-------------5Z 5-------:-----56

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources related to
pensions will be recognized in Pension Expense as follows:

s 687,37r
(186,233)

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

Sensitivity of the Net Pension tiability (Asset! to Changes in the Discount Rate:

776,706
720,633
115,885

1o2,263
46,527

5,525

s_____________57ru s______________=

Discount
Rate - 7.00%

202L
2022
2023
2024
2025

Thereafter
Total

746,404 s
141,356

9s,946
80,274
76,09L
39.s50

s

1% Decrease 1% lncrease
Total Pension Liability
Less Fiduciary Net Position

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset):

Reporting Period Ended September 30, 2019
Change for a Year:

Service Cost
I nte rest

Unexpected lnvestment lncome
Demographic Experience
Employer Contributions
Employee Contributions
Benefit Payments and Refunds

Administrative Expenses

Assumption Changes

Reporting Period Ended September 30,2O2O

s_______Jrc8Ul 5_______JZ3-A4) S____I1211J25)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liabilitv (al Net Position (bl Asset la+bl

5 3,920,647 5 (4,722,6tt1 S (801,964)

s 4,506,538 s
(4.850.355)

4,076,937 s
(4.8s0.3ss)

3,639,930
(4.850.3ss)

r89,7L9
278,676 (324,529)

20,915
(55,801)

(246,2s01

(25,4O7)

(64,038)

246,250
19,065 19,065

s_______4,USp3L s____14i503551 5_______LJB-A4)

t89,719
(4s,e13)
20,915

(65,801)

125,407],
(64,038)
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Combining Schedule of Fiduciary
Net Position

Pension Trust Funds
September 30,2O2O

Retirement
Plan and Trust
for the Police

Officers

Retirement
Plan and Trust
for the General

Emolovees Total
Assets

Cash and Money Market
lnvestment in External lnvestment

Pool at Fair Value
Due from Other Governments
Contributions Receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities
Accrued Expenses

Total Liabilities
Net Positions - Held in Trust

for Pension Benefits

Additions
Contribution:

Employer
State

Employees
Total Contributions
lnvestment Earnings

TotalAdditions

Deductions
Benefits Paid

Lump Sum Distributions
Ad ministrative Expenses

Total Deductions

Change in Net Position

Net Position Held in Trust for
Pension Benefits, Beginning of Year

Net Position Held in Trust for
Pension Benefits, End ofYear

2,860,845 4.850.355 7.7tI,200

2,400 3.415 5.815

2.400 3.415 5.815

S 2,858,445 5 4,846.940 S 7,705.385

s 22,40t s 38,637

4,790,970

20.74A

s 61,038

7,569,652
30,565
50.945

2,777,682
30,565
30.L97

Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Pension Trust Funds

For The Fiscal Year Ended September 3O 2020

Retirement
Plan and Trust
for the Police

Officers

Retirement
Plan and Trust
for the General

Emolovees Total

sss 109,578

30,563
26.9s8

25,474_

64.038

135,052

30,563
90,996

167,099

t78,60r
89,5r2

303,513

256,6t1
482,214

345,700 393.r25 738.825

t49,L62
248,68s

10,s02

216,949
29,3O1

19.r2t

366,11r
277,986

29.623
408,349 265.377 673.720

162,6491 L27,754 65,105

2,92t.O95 4.719.r85 7,640.280

s______2js8t46 s______4erc9!9 s______rJ05JSs
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Florida State Retirement System - Pension Plan

Beginning in2OI7, all Fire Fighters of the City are eligible to participate in the Florida State Retirement System
(the System). This System was created by the Florida Legislature and is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit, and public retirement plan available to governmental units within the State of Florida. The

System issued a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required

supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the State of Florida

Division of Retirement, Department of Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315, or
by calling (850) 488-s706.

All fire employees of the City are eligible to participate in the System. Special risk employees who retire
at or after age 55, with six years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly
for life, equal to the product of: 1.) average monthly compensation in the highest five years of creditable
service; 2) creditable service during the appropriate period; and 3) the appropriate benefit percentage.

Benefits fully vest on reaching six years of service. Vested employees may retire after six years of
creditable service and receive reduced retirement benefits. The System also provides death benefits,
disability benefits, and annual cost-of-living adjustments. Benefits are established by Florida Statute.
Beginning in 2011, the state mandated a 3% contribution to the plan by the employees. The City currently
only has fire employees that participate in Florida Retirement System.

The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of the Florida

Legislature. These acts provide that employers, such as the City, are required to contribute 24.45% of the
compensation for Regular Special Risk and 35.84% for Administrative (with 1.66% for HIS) as of
September 30,2020. ln addition, employees that are not participating in the DROP program are required
to contribute 3% oftheir gross salary.

The City contributed tOO% of the required contributions to the System for the year ended September 30,

202O, as follows:

Year Amount
2020 s 99,554

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources

Related to Pensions-At September 30,2O20, the City reported a net pension liability of $1,214,735 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,
2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an

actuarial valuation as of July I,2020. The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based

on projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected

contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2O2O, the City's
proportionate share of the FRS liability was .00280132583% an increase of .00060415078%from the prior
year. The City opted to pay retirement on the fire employees in the 2019/2020 budget process.
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Pension Expense ond Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources-For the year
ended September 30,2020, the Sponsor will recognize a Pension Expense of 5585,549. On September 30,

2020, the Sponsor reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred lnflow
Funds

Deferred Outflow
Funds

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience

Change in Assumptions
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings

on Pension Plan lnvestments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between the

City Contributions and Proportionate Share of
Contributions

City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date

Total

Year

5s 46,467
2r9,797

72,291

303,762
22,326

s_____________6 13

The Deferred Outflows of Resources related to pensions totaling 522,326 resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ending September 30,202I. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

Thereafter
Total

Total
lnflows/outflows
s 1s3,56s

L92,556
158,813

97,869
39,414

s___sa3a_

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the July t, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

lnflation
Salary lncreases

lnvestment Rate of Return 7.1oo/o, Net Pension Plan

2.40%
3.25% lncluding lnflation
lnvestment Expense, lncluding
lnflation

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July t,2020 valuation, were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study forthe period June 30,2013 through June 30,2020.

60



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CIW OF WILIISTON, FTORIDA

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized
in the following table:

Cash

Fixed lncome
Global Equity

Real Estate

Private Equity
Strategic lnvestments

Total

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

LOo/o

79.0%

54.2%
!0.3o/o

77.I%
4.4%
TOO0/"

Annual
Arithmetic

Return

Compound
Annual

(Geometric)
Return

Standard
Deviation

2.2%
3.0%

8.0%

6.4%
70.8%

5.5%

2.2%
2.9%

6.7%
5.8o/o

8.r%
s3%

1.2%

3s%
L7.L%

tL.7%
25.7%
6.9%

Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00 percent, ln general,

the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability under GASB Statement No. 67 is equal to the
single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior
to the projected depletion date. The discount rate used in the 2020 valuation was not changed from 2019.
The rate of return assumption is a prescribed assumption as defined by ASOP 27. The 7.00 percent
assumption was adopted by the 2018 FRS Actuarial Assumption Conference.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liobility to Changes in the Discount Rate-
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 6.80 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1--percentage-point lower (5.80 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (7.80 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount
Rate - 6.80%

1% Increase
7.80%

City's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability 5 L,938,771 S t,Ztq,136 S 608,918

FRS Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position-Detailed information about pension plan's fiduciary net position
is available in the separately issued FRS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.
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Health Insurance Subsidy (HlS) Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Plan Description-The HIS Pension Plan (HlS Plan) is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan established to provide a monthly subsidy payment to retired members of any state-
administered retirement system in order to assist such retired members in paying the costs of health
insurance. Persons are eligible for HIS payments who are retired under a state-administered retirement
system, or a beneficiary who is a spouse or financial dependent entitled to receive benefits under a state-
administered retirement system, except those individuals who are pension recipients under Sections
t21^40, 237.08(18Xa), and 250.22, Florida Statutes, or recipients of health insurance coverage under
Section LIO.L232, Florida Statutes, or any other special pension or relief act are not eligible for such
pension payments. A person is deemed retired from a state-administered retirement system when he or
she terminates employment with all employers participating in the FRS and:

For a member of the FRS investment plan, the participant meets the age or service requirements to
qualify for normal retirement per Section I2L.OZL(291, Florida Statutes and meets the definition of
retiree in Section 721,.4501.(2), Florida Statutes.

For a member of the FRS defined benefit pension plan, or any employee who maintains creditable
service under the pension plan and the investment plan, the member begins drawing retirement
benefits from the pension plan.

Any person retiring on or after July 7,2007, as a member of the FRS, including a member of the investment
plan, must satisfy the vesting requirements for his or her membership class under the pension plan as

administered under Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. Any person retiring due to disability must qualify for a

regular or in-line-of-duty disability benefit per provisions under Chapter 1"12, Florida Statutes.
Additionally, participants in the Senior Management Service Optional Annuity Program and the State City
System Optional Retirement Program are not eligible to receive benefits from the HIS Plan.

Benefits Provided-The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of state-administered retirement
systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Department of Management
Services, Division of Retirement.

For the fiscalyear ended June 30, 2020, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS payment
equal to the number of years of creditable service completed at the time of retirement multiplied by 55.
The payments are at least 530 but not more than $tSO per month, pursuant to Section t12363, Florida
Statutes. To be eligible to receive a HIS benefit, a retiree under a state-administered retirement system
must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which can include Medicare.

Contributions-The HIS Program is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as

set by the Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS

members. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the contribution rate was 1.55 percent of payroll. The
state contributed 100 percent of its statutorily required contributions for the current and preceding three
years. HIS contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which HIS payments are authorized.
HIS benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. ln the event the
legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits
may be reduced or canceled.
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The City's contributions to the HIS defined benefit pension plan are reported as a total with the pension
plan contributions listed above.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of
Resources Related to H/S-AI September 30,2020, the City reported a net pension liability of 5155,201
for its proportionate share of the net pension liability for HlS. The net pension liability was measured as

of June 30,2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined
by an actuarialvaluation as of July I,2O2O. The City's proportionate share of the net pension liability was
based on projection of the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30,2O2O the City's
proportionate share was .00112852489%, which was an increase of .00023438889% from its
proportionate share measured as of June 30,2Ot9.

For the year ended September 30,2020, the City recognized pension expense is listed above. ln addition,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred
Inflow
Funds

Deferred
Outflow

Funds
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Change in Assumptions
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on

Pension Plan lnvestments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between the City

Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions
City Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date

Total

s 106

8,OLz

5,636
'l,.4,816

110

s

68,977
1,628

s_______ rJrS s_____9U62

The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions totaling S1,628 resulting from City contributions
subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ending September 30,202L. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

September 30,

s202r
2022
2023
2024
2025

Thereafter
Total

t9,3s4
18,455
16,608

72,386
8,191
6.4!7

S--- 31,421

ActuorialAssumptions-The total pension liability in the July t,2O2O, actuarialvaluation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
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lnflation
Salary lncrease
Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond

Municipal Bond

2.40%

325% Average, I ncluding I nflation

350%

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1,,2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July L, 2008 through June 30, 2013.

Discount Rate-The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.87 percent. ln general,

the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability under GASB Statement No. 67 is equal to the
single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior
to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis,

the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the
municipal bond rate selected by the plan sponsor. The discount rate used in the 2020 valuation was

updated from 3.50 percent to2.27 percent, reflectingthe change in the Bond Buyer General Obligation
2O-Bond Municipal Bond lndex as of June 30,2020.

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liobility to Chonges in the Discount Rate-
The following presents the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 2.21 percent, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (1.21 percent) or 1-

percentage-point higher (3.2L percent) than the current rate:

1% lncrease

City's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability s 159,280 s t37,79r 5 t2O,202

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position-Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position

is available in the separately issued FRS Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Note 9 - Other Disclosures

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts
Allowances for doubtful accounts at September 30,2020, are as follows:

1% Decrease

1..2t%

Current Discount
Rate2.2l%

Utility Fund

General Fund
Airport Fund

Total Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

s 58,314

16,339

58,195
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Note 10 - Other lnformation

Risk Management
The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; workers' compensation; and natural disasters for which the government
carries commercial insurance. There were no settlements in excess of the insurance coverage in any of
the three prior fiscal years.

Contingent [iabilities
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable
funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined
at this time, although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Note 11 - FederalAwards and State FinancialAssistance

During the fiscal year, the City did not expend greater than 5750,000 in federal awards or state financial
assistance, therefore an audit in accordance with Title 2 (Uniform Guidance) IJ.S. Code of Federal
Regulation (CFR) Part 200 and the Florido Single Audit Acf was not required.

Note 12 - Risk and Uncertainties

The COVID-19 pandemic has created economic disruptions throughout the country as of the date of our
report, which could cause significant declines in user fees, state shared revenues, financial markets, and
economic activity overall. The ultimate effect of these items to the City and all local governments is

expected to be significant but is not quantifiable at this time.

Note 13 - Subsequent Events

Subsequent events were evaluated through the date of the financial statements were available to be
issued. The financial statements were approved and authorized to be issued by management on June 11,
2021. There were no items that required disclosure as of that date.
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REqUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The following supplementary schedules present trend information regarding the retirement plans for the
City's General Employees and Police Officers retirement plans; retirement plans for the City's Firefighters
andOtherPostemploymentBenefits. Thisinformationisnecessaryforafairpresentationinconformitywith
generally accepted accounting principles.



ctTY oF wtLLtsToN, FLORTDA

RETIREMENT PIAN AND TRUST FOR POLICE OFFICERS

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2O2O

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPTOYER'S NET PENSION

LtABtLITY (ASSET) AND RETATED RATTOS

2020

138,458 5

186,496

(19,888)

(109,s78) s
(26,9s8)

(L63,76s1

357,722

10.150

67,577

(2,692,2521

LO3.62%

s33.995 s

20L9

113,336 s
169,828

5,253

(e7,o4s) s
(24,421l.

(r37,3281

69,745
10.954

(t78,O941

(2,514,158)

704.t3%

444.302 s

2018

(203,s10)

(2,310.648)

101,591 5

157,781
(28,s2s)

lso,446l s
(21,00s)

(L73,48s],

7r,!or
10.325

97,379 s
L4L,704
(17,330)

65,439

(74,3771 s
(18,598)

(26s,r74l.

54,37L
9.771

20L6

81,501 s
103,951

25,226

354,990

1 qqn )F-7 q

(7e,ss3) s
(18,330)

lL4e,87Ll
37,23L
8.354

(2o2,16e1

(1,810.378)

2015

59,909 s
136,436

79,567
(216,983)

(37,2361

(38,307)

r.449.o57

1 4qn 7qn q

(7s,oos) s
(18,0s3)

2,555

37,236
10.065

(43,2021

(r,767,1761

20L4

62,994
LL4,442

(8s,337)

92,099

1.395.958

1 Anq nq7

(Lrg,2781,

(21,100)

(134,338)

44,390

7 585

1222,64r\

(1,s44,535)

rra.68%

?,06 )a/L

20t7
Total Pension Liability

Service Cost

lnterest on the Total Pension Liability
Demographic Experience

Assumption Changes

Benefit Payments, lncluding Refunds of
Employee Contributions

Net Chante in Total Pension liability

Total Pension tiability,
Beginning of Year

Total Pension l-iability,
End of Year (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - imployer
Contributions - -mployee

Net lnvestment lncome
Benefit Payments

Administrative Expense

Net €hange in Plan Fiduciary

Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Nel Position,

Beginning of Year

Plan Fiduciary Nel Position,

End of Year (b)

Net Pension tiabilty (Assetl -

Ending (a) - {b)

Plan Fiduciary Nel Position as a

Percentage of Total Pension Liability

Covered Payroll*r

2 q?7 R6q q ? sls qrq ( 7 166 tq4 q ) )67 1nA q

5

(3s7,7221 (6s,746], (77,LO7) (54,3711 (37,23L1

(s2,6s5) 21a,67! !59,745 226,821 529,537

2.585.525 2.365.854 2.207.LO8 1.980.247 1.450.750

s

q o 6)46751 s 0 69) )\)l s 12 514.1s8'l

q lg1 *06l q no67)71 (

l-12.3!g,E4t

1147 ?,rr41 q 110? 5401 q I7) )6()t q

(298,101)

(2.O12.s471

to4.69%

363.64t

10L.63%

??1 
'q6

r24.79%

1?7 nn6

s (2.012.\47\ s {1.810.3781 s n.767.7761

{?59 628} s ()7A 1191

s

106.22%

402.249 s

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll o.oo% o.oo% o.oo%

+ GASBStatementNo.6Twasadoptedforthe2014FiscalYearandthelO-yeartreldinformationwillbedevelopedfrom
that date forward.

**For the 2017 fiscal year, the covered payroll was based on pensionable salary.

q q (
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

RETIREMENT PI.AN AND TRUST FOR POTICE OFFICERS

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

2019 2018 2017
Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contribution Defi ciency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll

s

q

(

2020

2052%

110,636 s

109,578

1058 E

q?1 qqc (

100,309 $

97,O45

1)64 s

Ldrao) q

94,683 s

90,M6
4.7?7 s

ao) )a9 q

82,868 s

74,371

8.5s7 s

aF.1 F.41 q

20t6

24.OL%

80,725 s

79,553

1.17) s

??1 2C6 q

2015

22.25%

75,174 s

75,005

169 s

1?7 066 (

20L4

3435%

1L7,445

ttg,27A
(1.793|

ao6)44

21.84% 22.49% 20.M%
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RETIREMENT PIAN AND TRUST FOR GENERAL EMPLOYEES

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE EMPLOYER'S NET PENSION

LtABtLTTY (ASSET) AND RETATED RATTOS

Total Pension tiability
Service Cost

lnterest on the Total Pension Liability

Demographic Experience

Assumption Changes

Benefit Paymelts, lncluding
Refunds of Employee Contributions

Net change in Total Pension Liability

Total Pension ti*ility,
Beginning of Year

Total Pension Li*ility,
End of Year (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer
Contributions - Employee

Net lnvestment lncome
Benefit Payme-lts
Administrative Expense

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
Beginning of Year

Plan Fiduciary Net Position,
End ofYear (bl

Net Pension tiability
(Asset) - Ending (a) + (b)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentate of Total Pension Liability

Covered Payrolls

s

q

s

(246,2sO1 1276,6691 .47?.2?91 (446.4171 (322,2s61 (201,s78) (2rL,3t3l

156,283 (48,84s) (109,870) 24t,423 818,859 (361,300) 1s0,239

3.920.647 3.969.492 4.O79.362 3.837.939 3.019.080 3.380.380 3.230.741

4 076 q10 q aq)n647 q 3 s6q 4s7 q 4o,79 ?'F,7 q ? R37 qlg q I O1q OAO ( ? ?RO ?RO

2020

L89,718 s
278,516
(6s,801)

(2s,474l, s
(64,038)

(303,613)

246,250
1g 065

(L27,8701

(4.7??.5441

170,840 s
280,605

(223,62L],

(30,143) s
(60,484)

1242,s7sl
276,669

20.221

2019

(35,312)

14.686.2321

14r,746 s
285,840

(rLs,z27)

(107,990) s
(s3,296)

(338,1s7)

423,229
20.447

2018

(s5,727l,

(4.630.s0s)

2017

r2r,584 s
268,562

32,335
265,359

(76,s821 s
(s3,684)

(s73,32s)

446,4t7
19.911

(237,2631

@.393.2421

2015

(78,312)

(4.314.930)

128,374 s
2t2,277
ro4,482
695,988

20t5

95,658 s
297,696

(zso,s74l
(302,s02)

(s0,643) s
(48,s33)

(3,20s)

20t,s78
14.972

20',4

101,093
260,459

(1t2,7141
(48,s37l.

(368,167)

384,331
14.141

(L26,3461

(4.306.7s3)

S (4,433,099)

s

13t.14%

9't L rlq/4

(32,8321 s
(4r,937l,

(343,5s1)

322,2s6
17.752

q l4.8so.3s4l I 14.7)7.5,441 s 14.686_2321 s 14.630.5051 s 14.79?.2421

rt8,169

(4.433.099)

l_l4al4spl
s 1773.4)41 s {801.8971 s 17t6]401 s {ss1.1431 s

118.97% r20.45% rtg.06%

(sss.303)s l1.29s,8sols t1.0s2.7191

1 15'F,771 ( '1 0s1 876 q Rs5 3s1 q

1r3.5L%

747.\76

714.47%

880.740

I42.92%

arl 1qqs (

Net Pension Liability as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll O.OO% O.OO% O.OO%

* GASB Statement No. 57 was adopted for the 2014 Fiscal Year and the lo-year trend information will be developed

from that date forward.
**For the 2017 fiscal year, the covered payroll was based on pensionable salary.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FTORIDA

RETIREMENT PLAN AND TRUST FOR GENEML EMPLOYEES

FOR YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2O2O

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Valuation Date

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method
Salary lncrease
Discount Rate

Note 2: Changes in Assumptions

There were no changes in assumptions in either plan.

2019 2018 2017

89,095 s 75,498 s s5,834 s 106,400 s

25,474 30,143 107,990 76,582
67 6)1 q 45 ?qq q {s1 1561 q 2q RIR (

1j66'i1 S 1.os3.876 S 895.35r S 7A7.\76 s

20.20 2016

57,70s s

32,432
)4 A7a

880.740 S

201s

34,167 s

50,643
q

941 .185 s

Police

Officers'
Pension Plan

October 1, 2019

Aggregate

Level Percentage,

Open

30 Years

Market Value
4.5% per Annum

7.OO%

2014

50,478

7r2,7t4
161 6?61

474.O54

General
Employees'

Pension Plan

October 1, 2019

Aggregate
Level Percentage,

Open
30 Years

Market Value
4.00% per Annum

7.OO%

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contribution Def iciency (Excess)

Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage

s

/,1F. 476l

of Covered Payroll 2.I8To 2.86% !2.06To 9.72% 3.73%

TGASB Statement No. 67 was adopted for the 2014 Fiscal Year and the 1o-Year trend information will be developed from that date forward.

53a% L3.6t%

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPTEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note 1: Methods and Assumptions Used in Calculations of Actuarially Determined Contributions
The actuarially determined contribution rates in the schedule of contributions are calculated as of October 'J.,2OI9, one year prior to the end of the

fiscal year in which contributions are reported. The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine the most recent

contribution rate reported in that schedule:

q

q
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

FtoRlDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSTON PLAN (11

SCHEDULE OF THE CIW'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION TIABILITY

2020 2019 2018

City's Proportion of the Net

Pension Liability

City's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability

City's Covered Payroll (June 30)

City's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability as a Percentage of its

Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the Total Pension Liability

Contributions in Relation to the

Contribution

Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Payroll

302,438 s 299,039 s

40L.45% 253.O4%

O.OOo/o o.oo%

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

2020 20L9

2017

0.0028013258% 0.OO219723460/o 0.0019285260% O.OOL20060470%

s t,2r4,r36 s 756,697 s

s

580,882 s

255,001 s

355,131

L54,244

227.80%

84.26%

2018

230.24%

83.89%

2017

Contractually Required Contribution s 94,233 s

(s4,2331

73,666 s

173,666l.

s9,700 s

(se,700)

55,327

lss,327l

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

City's Covered Payroll (September 30) S 400,474 5 315,454 s 250,613 s r54,244

23.53% 2335% 23.82% 35.87%

(ll20L7 wasthefirstyearthattheCity'sFirefighterswereenteredintothePlan. lnformationforthesubsequenttenyears'datawill be

accumulated.
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CITY OF WILIISTON, FLORIDA

FLORTDA HEATTH TNSURANCE SUBSTDY PENS|ON ptAN (11

SCHEDUTE OF THE CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION TIABILITY

2020 20L9 2018

City's Proportion of the Net

Pension Liability

City's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability

City's Covered Payroll (June 30)

City's Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability as a Percentage of its

Covered Payroll

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

Percentage of the Total Pension Liability

Contractually Required Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually

Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

City's Covered Payroll (September 30)

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered

20L7

o.00II28524900/o O.OOOA94137L6% 0.00078074600% 0.OOO47024I820/o

s L37,79L s 100,045 s 82,63s 5 50,280

$ 302,438 $ 299,039 $ 255,001 S r54,244

45.56% 33.46% 32.41% 32.60%

o.00% o.oo% 2.L5% t.64%

SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS

2020 20L9 2018 2017

s 5,321 s 5,133 s 4,160 s 2,560

(s,321) (s,133) (4,160) S (2,s50)

s 400,474 5 3L5,454 5 250,613 S

L.33To L.63Yo L.66%

L54,244

t.66%

lLl 2O!7 was the first year that the City's Firefighters were entered into the Plan. lnformation for the subsequent ten years' data will be

accumulated.
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CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

oTHER POSTEMPLOVMENT BENEFTTS (OPEB) PIAN
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB TIABILITY

Fiscal Year
2020

Fiscal Year
20L9

Fiscal Year
2018

Total oPEB Liability:
Service Cost

Expected lnterest Growth
Demographic Gain/Loss

Difference Between Expected and Actual Expense

Amortization
Changes in Assumptions and Other lnputs
Benefit Payments

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB tiability - Beginning
Total OPEB tiability - Ending

Covered Payroll

Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

(s1,738)

97,OO7 (3,613) 14,533

352,637 356,250 34L,7t7

_s 449,644_ _s 352,63?_ _s 356,250_

s 9t,224 s
9,456

(1,6241

2,841
(8so)

(4,040)

48,542 s
72,783
(1,654)

(24,641l,

(8so)
(37,7931

52,877

13,394

s z,tzs,szl s

2L15%

r,730,542 $

20.38%

r,586,2tt

22.46%

Note: No Plan assets are accumulated in a Trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75 to pay

related benefits.

Assumption Changes: Since the prior measurement date, the discount rate was decreased from 3.58% per annum to
3.00% per annum, the monthly implied subsidy at age 55 for the 2OL9/2O fiscal year for the retiree and his spouse was

increased from 5215 to 5250, and the mortality basis was changed from the RP-2000 Mortality Table with generational

improvements in mortality using Scale BB to the PU8-2010 Mortality Table with generational improvements in mortality
using Scale MP-2077.

Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB Statement No. 75 is applicable, Future
years' information will be displayed as it becomes available for a period of up to 10 years.
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PURvIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standords,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City of Williston, Florida (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated June LL,zOZt.

lnternal Control over Financial Reporting
ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internalcontrol, such thatthere is a reasonable possibilitythat a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Citinesville I Ocalal'lallahassce lSarasora I Orlandal Lakeland

purvisgray.com
Mcrrrbers ol'r\nrerican anr.l Floritla lnsiitrlte,s ol'(lertihcd Public r\cco{rnlants

An lnclepentlenl Memtrer olthc llf)O Allirnce USA
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAT REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORM ED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G OVER N ME NT AU DIT' NG STAN DARDS

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an

objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
G ove rn me nt Auditi ng Stondo rds.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

€,^,,-
June'J.L,2O2t
Ocala, Florida

&"^f
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PURvIS GRAY

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

WITH SECTION 218.415, FLORIDA STATUTES

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

We have examined the City of Williston's (the City) compliance with the requirements of Section 2L8.4L5,
Florida Statutes, with regards to the City's investments during the year ended September 30, 2020.
Management is responsible for the City's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American
lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the City complied, in all material respects,
with the requirements referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain
evidence about whether the City complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing, and
extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of
material non-compliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with specified
requirements.

ln our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements during
the fiscal year ended September 30,2020.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Florida Auditor General, the Mayor and
Council Members, and applicable management, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

f*,,*
June lL,2021-
Ocala, Florida

&^y

CERTI FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Cainesville I Acah | 7'allahassec I Slrrusota I Orland<t I Ltkelwttl

purvisgray.com
ivlenrbers ofr\merican and lilorida Institutes of(lerti&ed Public Accountants

,,\n Indcpenilen! Mernber of the llD() Alliance USi\
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PuRvIs GRAY

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of the City of Williston (the City) as of and for the fiscal year
ended September 30,2020, and have issued our report thereon dated June 17,2021.

Auditor's Responsibility
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued

by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor Generol.

Other Reporting Requirements
We have issued our lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and lndependent Accountant's Report on an examination conducted
in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements
in accordance with Chapter L0.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and
schedule, which are dated June 71, 2021, should be considered in conjunction with this management
letter.

Prior Audit Findings
Section 10.554(1Xi)1 ., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annualfinancial
audit report. There were no findings or recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit
report.

OfficialTitle and Legal Authority
Section 10.554(1Xi)4., Rules of the Auditor Generol, requires that the name or official title and legal

authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this
management lette[ unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The legal authority for the
City is reported in Note L to the basic financial statements. The City included the following blended
component unit:

r Williston Community Redevelopment Agency

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
(jaincsville I Ocaln I Titllahassee I S'arir.rcra I Orlantlo I I.akeland

purvisgray.com
Nlenrtrers ol'i\melican arrtl [:ltrritla Institutcs ol'(]crtifirrl Public Account:urts

i\n lntlepenrlent &lenrbcr ofthc Ill)0 ;\lliance L.iS;\
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Financial Condition and Management
Sections 10.554(1xi)5.a. and L0.556(7), Rules of the Auditor Generol, require us to apply appropriate
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the City has met one
or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific
condition(s) met. ln connection with our audit, we determined that the City did not meet any of the
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1Xi)5.b. and 10.555(8), Rules of the Auditor Generol, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures for the City. lt is management's responsibility to monitor the City's
financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1Xi)2 ., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations
to improve financial management. Please see the attached Management Letter Comment.

Additional Matters
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate non-compliance with
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred,
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of
those charged with governance. ln connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the l-lorida Auditor
General, Federal, State, and other granting agencies, the Mayor and Council Members, and applicable
management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

We wish to take this opportunity to thank you and your staff for the cooperation and courtesies extended
to us during the course of our audit. Please let us know if you have any questions or comments concerning
this letten our accompanying reports, or other matters.

12*,,* &"^f
June II,2O2t
Ocala, Florida
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PuRvIs GRAY

MANAGEMENT TETTER COMMENT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Williston
Williston, Florida

2020-01 Utilitv lnventorv Records
After reviewing the City's inventory records of the supplies on hand for the utility operations, we noted a

necessary adjustment to reduce the inventory balance in the accounting records. lt came to our attention
that many of the supplies on hand, once removed from the inventory system, were not logged back into
the inventory system if not used and there was a lack of overall organization in the inventory warehouse.

We recommend management begin to perform random counts of supplies throughout the year to ensure
the account balances are correctly stated in both the physical location and in the accounting records.

e*r'*
June 7'J,,2O2I
Ocala, Florida

g^r

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
Gainesvillc I Ocala I'kllahassee I Sarasota I Orlanda I Lakeland

purvisgray.com
!lembers ofArrerican and Florida lnstitutes of(lertifictl Public Accountlnts

An Indepentlent Menrber of the lllX) Alliance USA
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CITYOF.wILLISTOI{
FLORIDA

50 N.W. Main ST. . P.O. O.awar 160 . Wlligbn, Flodda 311696{t60
Phonc (352) 5e8-3O60. Fax (S52r52&2gm

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSE TO AUDIT FINDINGS

June I l,2AZl

To the Auditor General, State of F'lorida:

This letter represents our required response and follow-up to audit findings under Section 10.558(l),
Rules of the Auditor General, state of Florida, for the year ended september 3a,2a2a:

2420'l Utility Inventory Records --- The City agrees with the auditor's recommendation that the
inventory team should perform random counts ofsupplies throughout the year to ensure the account
balances are correctly stated in both the physical location and in the accounting system. The City
also has established an inventory team to assist, review and monitor the inventory balances
throughout the year.

Very truly yours,

CITY OF

Jaek
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